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Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the 
earliest. 
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A separate communication has already been sent to the respective shareholders.
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The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 
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Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 
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MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED 
Regd. Off: A – 30, S – 11, Second Floor, Kailash Colony, New Delhi – 110048 

CIN: L74899DL1993PLC056421 

 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
1) COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
 

The company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is to ensure ethical and transparent 
governance practices in all its business segments, which leads to primary object of enhancing 
stakeholder’s value. Your company maintains the efficient corporate governance practices by 
making necessary disclosures to stock exchanges and other regulatory authorities on regular 
basis. As the company believes in to maintain the best governance practices, the management and 
officers of the company are committed to value transparency, maintains the integrity and 
accountability in conducting operations of the company which leads to operational efficiencies.  
 
Corporate Governance has been an integral part of the way we are doing our business. As a good 
corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, 
openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various 
stakeholders in it thereby paving the way for its long-term success. The Company believes that 
good Corporate Governance emerges from the application of the best and sound management 
practices and compliance with the laws coupled with adherence to the highest standards of 
transparency and business ethics. Company’s Board is committed to the creation of long-term 
sustainable value for the benefit of all stakeholders. 
 
The company has also adopted code of conduct for its officers as well as its Board of Directors, 
which is also posted on Company’s website (www.pgil.com). Your company confirms 
compliance with the applicable corporate governance requirements as laid down under SEBI 
(Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

  
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE  

 
The Corporate Governance structure at Marble City India Limited is as follows:  
 
1. Board of Directors: The Board is entrusted with an ultimate responsibility of the 

management, directions and performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in 
nature, the Board provides leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view to 
the Company’s management while discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the 
management adheres to ethics, transparency and disclosures.  
 

2. Committees of the Board: The Board has constituted the following Committees viz, Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee. Each of the said Committee has been mandated to operate within a given 
framework. 

 
In compliance with the disclosure requirements of Chapter IV read with Schedule V of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 (Hereinafter referred to as 
“SEBI – LODR”), the details are set out below: 
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2) BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

  
As on March 31, 2024, the board comprised of Five Directors with an optimum combination of 
Executive, Non – Executive and Independent Directors. The composition of the Board and 
category of Directors is as follows: 
 

S. NO. NAME OF DIRECTOR CATEGORY 
1 Shri Saket Dalmia Promoter, Managing & Executive Director
2 Shri Amit Dalmia Promoter & Non – Executive Director
3 Shri Anil Kumar Independent Non – Executive Director
4 Shri Pradip Asopa Independent Non – Executive Director
5 Smt. Usha Sharma Non – Executive Director  

 
The composition of the Board is in conformity with the provisions of the SEBI – LODR 
Regulations. The Board meets regularly and is responsible for the proper direction and 
management of the Company.  

 
The composition of the Board, number of meetings held, attendance of the Directors at the Board 
Meetings and last Annual General Meeting and number of Directorship and 
Chairmanship/Membership of committees in other companies in respect of each Director is given 
herein below: 

 
 
 
Name of Directors 
 

 
 

Category 

 
Particulars of Attendance  

 
 

Other 
Directorships*  

at Board Meetings held 
during 2023 - 2024

at AGM held 

on 22/09/2023 
Held Attended 

Mr. Saket Dalmia 
(Managing Director) 

Promoter & 
Executive 

12 12 Yes 13 

Mr. Amit Dalmia 
(Director) 

Promoter & 
Non-Executive

12 12 Yes 4 

Mr. Anil Kumar 
(Director) 

Independent  
Non- Executive

12 12 Yes 1 

Ms. Pradip Asopa 
(Director)  

Independent  
Non- Executive

12 12 Yes 1 

Mrs. Usha Sharma 
(Director) 

Non – 
Executive

12 12 No -- 

 
* No. of other Directorships indicated above is inclusive of Directorship of Private/Public 
Limited companies as on March 31, 2024. None of the Directors is either Chairman or Member 
of committees in other companies. 

 
 Date and No. of Board Meetings held  
 

During the Financial year ended March 31, 2024, the Board met 12 (Twelve) times on  
 

1. 04th Apr, 2023 

2. 14th Apr, 2023 

3. 01st May, 2023 

4. 23rd May, 2023 

5. 30th May, 2023 

6. 24th July, 2023 

7. 14th Aug, 2023 

8. 28th Aug, 2023 

9. 14th Nov, 2023 

10. 09th Dec, 2023 

11. 05th Mar, 2024 

12. 30th Mar, 2024 
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Requisite quorum was present for all the meetings. The maximum gap between any two 
meetings did not exceed threshold period.   

 
 
 Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 

 
Saket Dalmia – Relative (Brother) Amit Dalmia – Relative (Brother) 

 
 Shareholding of Non – Executive Directors in the Company 

   

Name of Director No. of Equity 
Shares Held 

No. of Convertible 
Instruments Held 

Amit Dalmia 4,32,220 NIL
Anil Kumar NIL NIL
Pradip Asopa 487 NIL
Usha Sharma NIL NIL

   

 Familiarization Programme and Training of Independent Directors 
 

The details of programmes for familiarization of Independent Directors with the company, their 
roles and responsibilities in the company, business model of the company and other related 
matter are updated on the website of the Company (www.pgil.com). 
 
Chart Setting Out the Skill/Expertise/Competence of The Board of Director 
 
Company has identified the following core skill/expertise/competence as required in context of 
its business for it to function effectively as per given list: 

 
EDUCATION BACKGROUND Metric/Minimum Graduate/ Undergraduate 
           M.BA or any other degree/diploma in any           
                                 specific area will be given preference 
 
EXPERTISE Accounts, Finance, Project implementation, Quality 

Production Process, Marketing, product promotion, 
manufacturing of bulk products, Project Work, 
Purchase 

  
Skill/Expertise/Competence available with Board 
 
Board currently having following Skill/Expertise/Competence within the Board 

 
S. No. Name of Director Skill/ Expertise/ Competence 

1 Saket Dalmia Raw material procurement, Finance, Product 
Promotion, Sales & Marketing 

2 Amit Dalmia Raw material procurement, Production Process, Bulk 
product manufacturing, Finance, Sales & Marketing.

3 Anil Kumar Finance and Accounts
4 Pradip Asopa Finance, Import and Banking
5 Usha Sharma Sales & Marketing
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Declaration of Independent Directors 
 
All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as 
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and Listing Regulations.  
 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in these 
regulations and are independent of the management. 
 
No Independent Director resigned during the year under review. 
 
Board Procedure 
 
As per Corporate Policy all the statutory and material information are placed before the Board 
with a view to enable it to discharge efficiently its responsibilities in formulating the strategies 
and policies for the growth of the Company. The agenda and other relevant papers were 
circulated ahead of the scheduled dates of the meetings. The day-to-day affairs of the Company 
are managed by the Managing Director subject to the supervision and control of the Board of 
Directors. Opinions and advices of the Independent & Non-executive Directors are considered 
valuable guidance. 
 

Information supplied to the Board 
 

The Board has access to all information with the Company. All Board Meetings are 
governed by structured agenda which is backed by comprehensive background 
information. The information with regard to mandatory items as per SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations is regularly supplied to the Board of Directors. The agenda papers are 
circulated well in advance to the Board of Directors to take a well-informed decision. 

 
Post Meeting Follow Up System 
 
The Company also had effective Post Board Meeting Follow up System. The Board 
Periodically reviews compliance of all laws pertaining to the Company. 

 
Succession Plan 

 
The Board of Directors have satisfied itself that plans are in place for orderly succession 
for appointment to the Board of Directors and Senior Management. 

 
            Web link: www.pgil.com  

 
3) AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

As on March 31, 2024, the Audit Committee of the company comprises Three Non-Executive 
Directors, of which two of them are Independent. The Chairman of the committee is an 
independent Director having financial and accounting knowledge. The composition of Audit 
Committee and attendance of Directors at committee meetings is shown below: 
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Name of the Director and Designation Attendance at Committee Meetings 

Held Attended 
Mr. Pradip Asopa, Chairperson  4 4 
Mrs. Usha Sharma, Member 4 4 
Mr. Anil Kumar, Member 4 4 

 
 
 
Statutory Auditors were invited to participate in the meetings of Audit Committee wherever 
necessary.   

 
 Meeting / Attendance: 

 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2024 the Audit Committee of the company met four 
times. The dates of the meetings were as follows:  
 

   16th May, 2023     01st Aug, 2023   
   06th Nov, 2023     01st Feb, 2024   
   
  Terms of Reference: 

 
1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient, and credible. 
 

2) Recommending to the Board the appointment, re-appointment, terms of 
appointment/reappointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the Statutory 
Auditor and the fixation of audit fees/remuneration. 

 
3) Approval of payment to Statutory Auditors for any other services rendered by the Statutory 

Auditors. 
 

4) Reviewing, with the Management, the Annual Financial Statements before submission to the 
Board for approval, with particular reference to: 

 
 Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be 

included in the Board’s report in terms of Sub- Section (5) of Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and 
reasons for the same. 

 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of 
judgement by the Management. 

 Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 
findings. 

 Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 
statements. 

 Disclosure of any related party transactions. 

 Qualifications in the draft audit report. 
 

25



5) Review/examine, with the Management, the quarterly/year to date financial statements and 
auditor’s report thereon, before submission to the Board for approval. 
 

6) Reviewing with the Management, the financial statements of subsidiaries and in particular 
the investments made by each of them. 

 
7) Reviewing/Monitoring, with the Management, the statement of uses/application/end use of 

funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.) and related 
matters, the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring 
the utilization of the proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate 
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 

 
8) Reviewing/evaluating, with the Management, performance of Statutory and Internal 

Auditors, internal financial controls, risk Management system and adequacy of the internal 
control systems. 

 
9) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit. 

 
10) Discussion with Internal Auditors any significant findings and follow-ups there on. 
 
11)  Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal    auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 
material nature and reporting the matter to the Board. 

 
12) Discussion with Statutory Auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 

of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern. 
 
13) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in payment to the    depositors, debenture 

holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors. 
 
14) To review the functioning of the Whistle- Blower mechanism. 
 
15) Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e. the Whole- Time Finance Director or any other 

person heading the finance function or discharging that function) after assessing the 
qualifications, experience and background, etc. of the candidate. 

 
16) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit 

Committee. 
 
17) Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of Audit 

process. 
 
18) Approval or any subsequent Modification of transactions of the Company with related 

parties. 
 
19) Scrutiny of inter- corporate loans and investments. 
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20) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary. 
 

Further, the Audit committee is empowered to investigate any activity within its terms of 
reference, seek information it requires from any employee, obtain outside legal or other 
independent professional advice and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if 
considered necessary. Apart from the above, the Audit Committee also exercises the role and 
powers entrusted upon it by the Board of Directors from time to time. The Company has systems 
and procedures in place to ensure that the Audit committee mandatorily reviews: 
 

 Management Discussion and Analysis of financial conditions and results of operations. 

 Statement of significant Related Party Transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), 
submitted by Management. 

 Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the Statutory Auditors. 

 Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses. 

 Appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Internal Auditor. 

 Statement of deviations 
 

In conclusion, the Committee is sufficiently satisfied that it has complied with the 
responsibilities as outlined in the Audit Committee’s responsibility statement. 

 
4) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
As on March 31, 2024, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprised of three 
Directors with Mr. Pardip Asopa as Chairman, Mrs. Usha Sharma and Mr. Anil Kumar as 
members. The composition of Audit Committee and attendance of Directors at committee 
meetings is shown below: 

 
Name of the Director and Designation Attendance at Committee Meetings 

Held Attended 
Mr. Pradip Asopa, Chairperson  2 2 
Mrs. Usha Sharma, Member 2 2 
Mr. Anil Kumar, Member 2 2 

 
 Meeting / Attendance: 

 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2024 the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
of the company met one time. The dates of the meetings were: 
 

1. 14th Aug, 2023   2. 01st Feb 2024 
 

Terms of reference: 
 
1) Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 

a Director. 
 
 
 
 

27



2) Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 
Senior Management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal. 

 
3) Formulate the criteria for evaluation of Director’s and Board’s performance and to carry out 

the evaluation of every Director’s performance.  
 

4) Devising a policy on Board diversity.  
 

5) To engage the services of consultants and seek their help in the process of identifying 
suitable person for appointments to the Board. 
 

6) To decide the remuneration of consultants engaged by the Committee. 
 

7) Framing, recommending to the Board and implementing, on behalf of the Board and on 
behalf of the Shareholders, policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) & other Employees,  

 
8) including ESOP, pension rights and any other compensation payment. 

 
9) To ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to 

attract, retain and motivate Directors and KMP of the quality required to run the Company 
successfully. 
 

10) To ensure that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 
performance benchmarks. 
 

11) To ensure that remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. 
 

12) Considering, approving and recommending to the Board changes in designation and increase 
in salary of the Directors, KMP and other employees. 
 

13) Framing the Employees Share Purchase Scheme / Employees Stock Option Scheme and 
recommending the same to the Board/ shareholders for their approval and implementing/ 
administering the scheme approved by the shareholders. 
 

14) Suggesting to Board/ shareholders changes in the ESPS/ ESOS. 
 

15) Deciding the terms and conditions of ESPS. 
 

The Company has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the 
requirements of Section 178 of the Act and SEBI Regulations. The Broad terms of reference are 
as follows: 
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 Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a Director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to the remuneration 
of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees. 
 

 Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent Directors and the Board 
of Directors. 

 

 Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors 
 

 Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board 
of Directors their appointment and removal. 

 

 Assessing whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent 
Director on the basis of the report of performance of Independent Directors. 

 
Board Diversity 
 
The Company has adopted the Policy on Board Diversity as required under Regulation 19 read 
with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015. 
 
Remuneration Policy 
 
The Company has adopted the Remuneration Policy as required under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI Listing 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
Succession Planning 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board for succession planning 
for its Directors, KMPs and Senior Management. 
 
Terms and Conditions of Appointment of Independent Directors 
 
The Independent Director is chosen keeping in view strategy, business leadership, knowledge of 
law, finance, sales or marketing, etc. 
 
The independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as laid 
down under the Act and applicable Rules and Regulations. 
 
The Independent Directors attended the familiarization program. The relevant details are 
available at the website of the Company www.pgil.com. 
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5)        SHAREHOLDER’S GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE: 
 

As on March 31, 2024, Shareholder’s Grievance Committee comprised of Mr. Pradip Asopa as 
Chairman of the committee, Mr. Amit Dalmia and Mr. Anil Kumar as its members to look into 
redressal of shareholders and investors grievances with respect to transfer of share, 
dematerialization of shares, non-receipt of declared dividend or Annual report etc. and other 
matters relating to shareholder relationship. The Shareholders grievance committee met to take 
note of redressal of shareholders complaint, But the Company didn’t receive any complaint 
during the year. All the members of the committee were present in meetings 
 
Mr. Davender Kumar, Company Secretary has been designated at Compliance Officer of the 
Company. 

 
6) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS: 

 
The remuneration by way of commission to the Non-Executive Directors is decided by the 
Board of Directors and Nomination and Remuneration Committee and distributed to them based 
on their participation and contribution at the Board and committee meetings and performance 
evaluation by the Board. Recently, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the 
amendments to section 149(9) and 197(3) of the Act by the companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 
to enable companies faced with no profits/ inadequate profits to pay certain fixed remuneration 
to their Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, in accordance with the provisions 
of Schedule V.  

 
The performance evaluation criteria for Non-Executive Directors, including Independent 
Directors, is determined by the NRC. An indictive list of factors that were evaluated include 
participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of Knowledge 
and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders, role in Board constituted 
committees, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and Independence of behavior and 
judgement. 

 
Company pays a sitting fee for attendance at each meeting of the Board, Audit Committee, 
NRC, SRC and for Independent Director Meeting is paid to Independent Directors. The sitting 
fees paid/payable to the Non – Whole time Directors is excluded whilst calculating the limits of 
remuneration in accordance with section 197 of the Act.  

 
Given below are the Remuneration and Sitting Fees payable / paid by the Company to Directors 
during FY 2023-24: 

(In INR) 
Name of Director Remuneration Sitting Fees 

Mr. Saket Dalmia, Managing Director 18,00,000.00 --
Mr. Amit Dalmia, Non-Executive Director 18,00,000.00 --
Mr. Pradip Asopa, Independent Director -- 2,23,000
Mr. Anil Kumar, Independent Director -- 5,37,633
Mrs. Usha Sharma, Non-Executive Director -- --

 
Remuneration to Managing Director:  

 
The remuneration paid to Mr. Saket Dalmia, Managing Director has been reviewed and 
approved by the Shareholders in 30th Annual General Meeting for another three years. 
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Share Based Incentive Schemes:  
 

No stock option or any other benefits were granted to any director during the financial year 
2023-2024. 

 
Service Contracts, Notice Period, Severance Fees: 

 
The Board on the recommendation of the NRC, re-appointed Mr. Saket Dalmia as Managing 
Director of the Company at its meeting held on 03rd March, 2021 for a further period of Five 
years w.e.f. 01st April, 2021 to 31st March, 2026. The re-appointment was approved by the 
shareholders at the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 27th September, 2021.    

 
7) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS: 

 
 The last three Annual General Meetings of the company were held at: 

 
1. 04:00 P.M. on 22nd September, 2023 through VC/ OAVM; 
2. 04:00 P.M. on 27th September, 2022 through VC/ OAVM; 
3. 05:00 P. M. on 27th September, 2021 through VC/ OAVM; 

 
Special Resolution passed in AGM held on 22nd September 2023 
 
1. Item No. 5 – Appointment of Mr. Himanshu Duggal (DIN: 05330907) as an Independent 

Director of the Company 
2. Item No. 6 – Appointment of Mr. Nirdesh Agarwal (DIN: 06871248) as an Independent 

Director of the Company 
3. Item no. 7 - Increase in limit of borrowing power 
 
Special Resolution passed in AGM held on 27th September 2022 
 
1. No Special Resolution was passed  
 
Special Resolution passed in AGM held on 27th September 2021 
 
1. Item No. 4 – Re- Appointment of Managing Director 

 
Whether any special resolutions were put through Postal Ballot in last year 
 
No special resolution was passed. 

 
8) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION: 

 
The means of communication between the Company and the shareholders are transparent and 
investor friendly. The Annual, Half yearly and Quarterly results are submitted to the Stock 
Exchange in accordance with SEBI – LODR. All price sensitive information is intimated at the 
earliest to the Stock Exchanges. Management discussions and Analysis forms part of Annual 
Report, which is posted to the Shareholders of the Company. 

 
Quarterly results are normally published in Jansatta in the Hindi Language and The Financial 
Express in the English language of Delhi edition. 

 
Quarterly results are also displayed on the Website of the Company. 

www.pgil.com 
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 Adoption of Quarterly Results 

 
First Quarter Unaudited Financial Results August 14, 2023
Second Quarter Unaudited Financial Results November 14, 2023
Third Quarter Unaudited Financial Results March 05, 2024
Fourth Quarter Audited Financial Results July 11, 2024

 
9) GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION: 

 
(a) The 31st Annual General Meeting of the Members of the Company is scheduled to be held 

on Saturday the 28th day of September, 2024 at 05.00 P. M. through VC/OAVM. 
 
Pursuant to General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 19/2021, 21/2021 , 
02/2022 and 10/2022 dated April 8, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 5, 2020, January 13, 2021, 
December 08, 2021, December 14, 2021, May 05, 2022 and December 28, 2022 and 
Circular No. 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023 respectively issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and Circular Nos. 
SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CMD1/ CIR/ P/ 2020/ 79, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 and 
SEBI/HODDHS/P/CIR/2022/0063 and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated May 12, 
2020, January 15, 2021 and May 13, 2022 and January 5, 2023, respectively issued by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’), 
holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) through VC/OAVM, without the physical 
presence of the Members, is permitted. In compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘the Listing Regulations’), MCA Circulars and SEBI 
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM which does not 
require physical presence of members at a common venue. The proceedings of the AGM 
will be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be the 
deemed Venue of the AGM. 

 
(b) Financial calendar for the year 2023-24: 

  
Financial Year :  April 1, 2023 – March 31, 2024 
 

(c) Dividend payment date:  Not Applicable 
 

(d) Listing on Stock Exchanges:  
 

As on March 31, 2024, the Equity Shares of Company are listed at following Stock 
Exchanges: 

 
 Bombay Stock Exchange Limited, Mumbai 

 P J Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001 
 
  The Company has paid Annual Listing Fees till 2023 – 24. 
 
 The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited  

7, Lyons Range, Kolkata – 700 001 
 

The Company has not paid Annual Listing Fees. However, the board of 
directors of your Company undertakes to pay the same at the earliest.  
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(e) Stock code:  

 
Stock Code: 531281 (BSE) 
Demat ISIN: INE807H01023 (NSDL and CDSL) 
 

(f) Market Price Data: 
  

YEAR MONTH HIGH (`) LOW (`) 
2023 April 13.50 11.25
2023 May 17.90 12.01
2023 June 15.60 13.00
2023 July 21.55 14.00
2023 August 19.00 15.18
2023 September 16.15 13.80
2023 October 18.40 13.50
2023 November 22.00 16.00
2023 December 17.50 15.50
2024 January 21.48 16.00
2024 February 22.00 17.50
2024 March 19.50 14.61

 
 

(g) Performance in comparison to broad – based indices: 
 
Not Applicable 
 

(h) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the 
reason thereof:     
 
Not Applicable 
 

(i) Registrar and Transfer Agents: 
 

M/s MAS SERVICES LIMITED 
T – 34, 2nd Floor  
Okhla Industrial Area, Phase -II 
New Delhi – 110 020 
TEL: 011-26387281/82 

 
(j) Share Transfer System: 

 

 As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of 
listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 
1st April, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or 
transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated 
with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management, members holding 
shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to 
dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company Secretary or Mas 
Services Limited, Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (“RTA”) (Tel. 
No. 011 26387281/82/83) for assistance in this regard. 
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 In accordance with SEBI LODR (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
(4th amendment) Regulations, 2018 notified on June 07, 2018 and further notification 
dated 30/11/2018 any request for physical transfer of shares shall not be processed 
w.ef. April 01,2019 

 
 Further, in compliance with SEBI vide its circular SEBI/HO/ 
MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2022/8 dated 25th January 2022, the following 
requests received by the Company in physical form will be processed and the shares 
will be issued in dematerialization form only:- 

 

1. Issue of duplicate share certificate  

2. Claim from unclaimed suspense account  

3. Renewal/Exchange of securities certificate  

4. Endorsement  

5. Sub-division / splitting of securities certificate  

6. Consolidation of securities certificates/folios  

7. Transmission  

8. Transposition  

For this purpose, the securities holder/claimant shall submit a duly filled up Form ISR-

4 which is hosted on the website of the company as well as on the website of MAS 

Services Ltd, Registrar and share transfer agent (RTA) The aforementioned form shall 

be furnished in hard copy form.  

 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their 
holdings at the earliest. 

 
 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circular dated 

November 03, 2021 read with circular dated December 14, 2021 has made it 
mandatory for the shareholders holding securities in physical form to furnish 
PAN, KYC (complete address with pin-code, bank detail with MICR-CODE & 
IFS CODE, Email-ID, Mobile Number) and Nomination details to the Registrar 
and Transfer Agent (‘RTA’) of the Company. Effective from 1st January 2022.  
Registrar will not process, any service requests or complaints received from the 
member until unless above KYC and nomination will not be completed by 
shareholder and such shareholders holding will be freeze by RTA on or after 
1st April 2023. 

 
 The shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested to note that in 
case of failure to provide required documents and details as per aforesaid SEBI 
circular, all folios of such shareholders shall be frozen on or after April 01, 2023 
by the RTA. In view of the above, shareholders of the Company holding 
securities in physical form are requested to provide following 
documents/details to RTA: 
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i. PAN;  (using Form ISR-1) 
ii. Nomination in Form No. SH-13 or submit declaration to ‘Opt-out’ in Form 

ISR-3;  
iii. Contact details including Postal address with PIN code, Mobile Number, E-

mail address;  
iv. Bank Account details including Bank name and branch, Bank account 

number, IFS code;  
v. Specimen signature. (using Form ISR-2)  

Any cancellation or change in nomination shall be provided in Form No.SH-14  
 
 All of above required documents/details to be sent at the address of registered 
office of the RTA. The shareholders can download the forms mentioned in SEBI 
circular from the website of the Company or RTA website i.e www.masserv.com. 
 
A separate communication has already been sent to the respective shareholders. 

 
The committee normally attends to share transfer formalities once in a fortnight. De-mat 
requests are normally confirmed within 21 days from the date of receipt of request. The 
Company obtains from a company secretary in Practice yearly Certificate of compliance 
with the share transfer formalities as required under regulation 40(10) of SEBI (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and files a copy of the said 
certificate with Stock Exchanges. Presently the majority of Shares of the Company are in 
dematerialized form. 

 
(k) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2024: 

 
No. of 

Shareholders 
%age of 
Holders

Category No. of 
Shares 

%age of 
Shares

1941 80.008 1 TO 5000 461591 3.864
259 10.676 5001 TO 10000 435688 3.647
108 4.452 10001 TO 20000 327643 2.742

32 1.319 20001 TO 30000 164677 1.378
17 0.701 30001 TO 40000 122806 1.028
13 0.536 40001 TO 50000 120287 1.007
31 1.278 50001 TO 100000 436362 3.652
25 1.031 100001 AND ABOVE 9878254 82.628

2426 100.00 TOTAL 1,19,47,308 100.00

 
(l) Dematerialization of shares and Liquidity: 

 
The Company has arrangement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) as well 
as Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for dematerialization of shares of the 
company with ISIN NO. INE807H01023 for both NSDL & CDSL.  
 
 
Those shareholders who wish to know more about the same may contact the company’s 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent or Share Department of the company.  
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NSDL Holding       7,86,768   
CDSL Holding     93,02,940 
Physical Holding     18,57,600 
Total            1,19,47,308 

 
(m) The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/ warrants or any Convertible 

Instruments. 
 

(n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: 
 

Not Applicable 
 

(o) Plant Location: 
 

 E-236,237 and I-2, Phase – II, RIICO Industrial Area, Behror, Rajasthan 
 

(p) Address for Correspondence: 
 
A-30, S-11, Second Floor, Kailash Colony, New Delhi – 110048 

 
(q) Credit Rating:   SMERA - SME 3 

 
10) OTHER DISCLOSURES: 

 
(a) Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 

conflict with the Interests of company at large.  
 
There were no transactions of materially significant nature with the promoters, the Directors 
or the Management or their subsidiaries or relatives that may have potential conflict with the 
interest of the Company at large. All the transactions with the related parties were on arm’s 
length basis and are done under the ordinary course of business. However, the disclosure of 
related party transactions has been made in the Auditor’s Report. The transactions as stated 
in the Auditor Report were done in the Ordinary Course of business of the Company and are 
at the arm length price. These transactions don’t affect the interest of the Company and its 
stakeholders in any manner whatsoever. 
 

(b) Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties and strictures imposed on the 
company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related 
to capital markets, during the last three years. 
 

Year Regulation of Non - Compliance Penalty (In INR) 
2023 -  24 33(3)(a) - December 23 – SEBI LODR 1,00,000
2023 -  24 74(5) - December 23 – SEBI D & P --
2022 -  23 23(9) -     September 22 – SEBI LODR --
2022 – 23 33(3)(a) - September 22 – SEBI LODR 6,00,000
2022 – 23 33(3)(a) - December 22 – SEBI LODR 2,60,000
2022 – 23 33(3)(a) - December 22 – SEBI LODR 1,45,000
2022 – 23 47(3) - September 22 – SEBI LODR --
2022 – 23 74(5) - September 22 – SEBI D & P --
2022 – 23 74(5) - December 22 – SEBI D & P --
2022 – 23 74(5) - March 22 – SEBI D & P --
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2022 – 23 74(5) -  June 22 – SEBI D & P --
2021 – 22 33(3)(a) - June 21 – SEBI LODR 15,000
2021 – 22 33(3)(a) - September 21 – SEBI LODR 25,000
2021 – 22 33(3)(d) - March 22 – SEBI LODR 40,000
2021 – 22 31(4) - March 21 – SEBI LODR --
2021 – 22 47(3) - September 21 – SEBI LODR --
2021 – 22 31(1)(b) - December 21 – SEBI LODR 76,000
2021 – 22 Clause A(4)(h) of Schedule III Part A – SEBI LODR --
2021 – 22 23(9) - September 21 – SEBI LODR --

 
 
The management of the Company pursues its best efforts to comply all the legal and 
statutory requirements as applicable to the Company. 
 

(c) Whistle Blower policy and affirmation that no personnel have been denied access to the 
audit committee.  
 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable provisions 
of SEBI – LODR, the Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for Directors & employees to 
report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation of Company’s 
Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of 
employees and directors who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to 
the Chairperson of Audit Committee. None of the personnel of the Company has been denies 
access to the Audit Committee. 
 

(d) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-
mandatory requirements of this clause 
 
The Company has complied with all the mandatory applicable provisions of SEBI LODR. 
As regard the non-mandatory requirements, Company tries to implement them to the extent 
possible. 
 

(e) Policy for determining “material” subsidiaries is not applicable on your Company. 
 
(f) Policy on dealing with related party is available at www.pgil.com 
 
(g) Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: 
 

Not Applicable 
 
 

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified 
institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A):   
 
Not Applicable 
 

(i) Certificate from Company Secretary in Practice that none of the director on board is 
debarred: 
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R Miglani & Co., Company Secretaries, Delhi has issued Certificate to this effect and shall 
be part of Annual Report 2023 – 24. 
  

(j) The Board had accepted all the recommendations of Committees of the Board. 
 

(k) Fees paid to Statutory Auditor:  Rs.80,000/-  
 
(l) Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at the workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
 

All employees are equal irrespective of their Gender. There is no discrimination between an 
individual on the basis of sex, colour, religion etc. The Company has in place Prevention of 
Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the applicable Act. The Committee on Sexual 
Harassment did not received any complaint during the year 2023-2024. 
 

(n) Disclosure of Loans & Advances in the nature of loans to firms/ Companies in which 
directors are interested 
 
The Company has not granted any loans & Advances in the nature of loans to firms/ 
Companies in which directors are interested. 
 

11) The Company has made compliance of requirements under Para C (2) to C (10) of Schedule V to 
SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 except which are not 
applicable to the Company. 

 
12) The Company have not been adopted the requirement as specified in Part E of Schedule II of 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 

13) The Company has complied with corporate governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 
to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of SEBI LODR Regulations, 
Non-compliance, if any, of the Regulations of SEBI LODR Regulations, has been specifically 
mentioned in the Report and were suitably replied to the stock Exchange. 
 

14) CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for all board members and senior management of the 
company.  All the board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance 
with the code for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 
15) RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT: 

 
In compliance with SEBI (Depository & Participants) Regulations, 1996, reconciliation of share 
capital Audit was carried out by a qualified Practicing Company Secretary on a quarterly basis 
for the purpose of reconciliation of share capital held in depositories and in physical form with 
the total issued and listed capital of the Company. The Audit Report issued by the Practicing 
Company Secretary confirms that the total issued/listed capital is in agreement with the total 
number of shares held in physical form and in dematerialized form with NSDL & CDSL. 
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16) CODE OF PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING PRACTICES: 
 

In compliance with SEBI Regulations on prevention of Insider trading, the Company has framed 
a comprehensive code of conduct for prevention of Insider trading practices in the equity shares 
of the Company. The same has been amended in line with the amended SEBI Regulations. The 
Code lays down the guidelines, which advises the connected persons mentioned in the code, on 
the procedure to be followed and disclosures to be made by them, while dealing with the shares 
of the company and cautioning them of the consequences of the violations. 
 

17) CERTIFICATION FOR CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 

R Miglani & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, of the Company has verified the compliance 
of the Corporate Governance by the Company. Certificate shall be part of Annual Report 2023 – 
24.  
 
 
 
 

 
     For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: New Delhi   
Date: 05th September,2024 

       Sd/-      Sd/-  
       Saket Dalmia                                             Amit Dalmia 

(Managing Director)                                         (Director) 
DIN: 00083636                                        DIN:0003646 
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R MIGLANI & CO.  
COMPANY SECRETARIES  

207, D.R. CHAMBERS, D.B GUPTA ROAD, 
                                                                                                                                                                 KAROL BAGH, NEW DELHI 110005  

            MB: 9711560406, Ph. Off: 011‐35004280 
Email: csrajnimiglani@gmail.com, cs.rajnimiglani@gmail.com  

_______________________________________________________________________________  
 

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) 
To, 

The Members of 
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED  
A - 30, S - 11, Second Floor Kailash Colony,  
New Delhi, Delhi, India, 110048 
 
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED (Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED) having CIN 
L27101HP1984PLC005862 and having registered office at A - 30, S - 11, Second Floor Kailash Colony, New Delhi, 
Delhi, India, 110048 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub clause (10)(i) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company and its officers and the representation given by the Management, we hereby certify that none of the Directors 
on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Director of Company by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority: 

S. No. Names DIN Date of Appointment 

1 Mr. Saket Dalmiya 00083636 01-04-2002 
2 Mr. Amit Dalmiya 00083646 01-04-2002 
3 Mr. Pradip Asopa 03146430 01-07-2010 
4 Mr. Anil Kumar 02165151 01-09-2008 
5 Ms. Usha Sharma 07155779 11-04-2015 

 

It is solemnly the responsibility of Directors to submit relevant declarations and disclosures with complete and accurate 
information in compliance with the relevant provisions. Further, ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity 
of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express 
an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For R MIGLANI & CO. 
Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/- 
CS Rajni Miglani 

Proprietor  
M. No.: 30016 

C .O .P No: 11273 
PR No.: 2392/2022 

       Date:  September 05, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001146142 
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COMPANY SECRETARIES  
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Email: csrajnimiglani@gmail.com, cs.rajnimiglani@gmail.com  
_______________________________________________________________________________  

 
 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
 
To the Shareholders of  
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED  
(Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED)   
 
1. I have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by MARBLE CITY INDIA 

LIMITED (Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED) (‘the Company’) for the financial Year 
ended on 31st of March, 2024, as stipulated under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

2. The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My 
examination has been limited to the review of the procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by 
the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an 
audit nor an expression of opinion on the Financial statements of the Company. 

 
3. In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me and the 

representation made by the directors and the management, I hereby certify that the Company has 
complied with the all mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 The 
listed entity had not made disclosure within prescribed time under Regulation 23(9) of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 and 
had made delayed submission with stock exchange for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and The listed 
entity has not submitted annual secretarial compliance report for the year ended 2023 in XBRL format 
under Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015,. 
 

4. I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
For R MIGLANI & CO. 
Company Secretaries 

 
Sd/‐ 

CS Rajni Miglani 
Proprietor  

M. No.: 30016 
C .O .P No: 11273 

PR No.: 2392/2022 
       Date:  September 05, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001146274 
 
 
 
Note- This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A’ 
 

To,  
The Members,  
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED  
(Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED) 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.  
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to 
ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices i 
followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 

3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of the 
Company. 
 

4.  Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.  
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is 
the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test 
basis. 

 
For R MIGLANI & CO. 
Company Secretaries 

 
Sd/‐ 

CS Rajni Miglani 
Proprietor  

M. No.: 30016 
C .O .P No: 11273 

PR No.: 2392/2022 
       Date:  September 05, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001146274 
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MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited) 

Regd. Off: A – 30, S – 11, Second Floor, Kailash Colony, New Delhi – 110048  
CIN: L74899DL1993PLC056421 

 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS 
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY’S 

CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
 
To 
The Members  
Marble City India Limited 

 
This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the 
Managing Director and Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of 
Conduct for its Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on 
the Company’s website. 
 
I confirm that the Company has in respect of the year ended March 31, 2024, received from the 
Senior Management Team of the Company and the Members of the Board a declaration of 
compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable to them. 
 
For the purpose of this declaration, Senior Management Team means the Managing Director and the 
Company Secretary as on March 31, 2024. 
 
 

          For and on behalf of the Board 
Place: New Delhi   
Date: 05th September,2024 

           Sd/-                      
                      Saket Dalmia                      

(Managing Director)                    
            DIN: 00083636                      
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MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED 
(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited) 

Regd. Off: A – 30, S – 11, Second Floor, Kailash Colony, New Delhi – 110048  
CIN: L74899DL1993PLC056421 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO)  
COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATION 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015) 
 
I, Saket Dalmia, Managing Director, to the best of our knowledge and belief, certify that: 
 

A. They have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that 
to the best of their knowledge and belief: 
 

1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and 
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and 
regulations. 

 
B. There are, to the best of their knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed 

entity during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity’s code of 
conduct. 
 

C. They accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that they have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
listed entity pertaining to financial reporting and they have disclosed to the auditors and the 
audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
deficiencies. 
 

D. They have indicated to the auditors and the Audit committee 
 

1) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 
2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have 

been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 
3) instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement 

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the 
listed entity’s internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 

For Marble City India Limited 
 
Place: New Delhi                Sd/- 
Date: 05th September,2024        Saket Dalmia                   
                  Managing Director 
                                 DIN: 00083636 
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Email: csrajnimiglani@gmail.com, cs.rajnimiglani@gmail.com  

_______________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
for the Financial year ended 31st March, 2024 

 
To,  
The Members,  
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED  
(Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED) 
A - 30, S - 11, Second Floor, 
Kailash Colony New Delhi-110048 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable, statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED (hereinafter called the 
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for 
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Opinion 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report 
that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 
March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2024 and made available to me, according 
to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, as applicable; 
ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the 

extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowing. 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act):- 
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a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the Company during 
the Audit Period); 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not 
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 
 

i. The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  
ii. Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
I report that, during the period under audit and review, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above. 
 
I further report that, there were no events / actions in pursuance of: 

 
a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008; 
b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018, requiring 

compliance thereof by the Company during the financial year. 
 
I further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company 
and also on the review of the compliance reports of Company Secretary taken on record by the Board 
of Directors of the Company, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with provisions of applicable general laws like Labour laws and 
Environmental laws. 
 
 I further report that; 
 
1. The compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct and indirect tax laws and 

maintenance of financial records and books of accounts have not been reviewed in this Audit since 
the same have been subject to review by statutory financial audit and other designated 
professionals. 
 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 
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3. Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent with in prescribed limit, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

 
As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the 
Board were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines. 
 
I further report that during the audit period the company has not made any major changes in the 
following events/actions in pursuance of the below law, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 

i. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc. 
ii. Redemption / buy-back of securities 

iii. Foreign technical collaborations 
 

I further report that;  

During the period under audit and review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned above except following; 

 

(i) Please refer Annexure A’ Discrepancies found during our audit as annexed to 
this report. 

 
For R	MIGLANI	&	CO. 
Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/- 
CS	Rajni	Miglani 

Proprietor  
M. No.: 30016 

C .O .P No: 11273 
PR No.: 2392/2022 

       Date:  September 02, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001097808 

 
 
 

Note- This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A & 
Annexure B and forms an integral part of this report.  
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 R MIGLANI & CO.  
COMPANY SECRETARIES  

207, D.R. CHAMBERS, D.B GUPTA ROAD, 
                                                                                                                                                                 KAROL BAGH, NEW DELHI 110005  

            MB: 9711560406, Ph. Off: 011‐35004280 
Email: csrajnimiglani@gmail.com, cs.rajnimiglani@gmail.com  

_______________________________________________________________________________  
 

Annexure A’ 
DISCREPANCIES FOUND DURING THE AUDIT  

 
1. Please note that the company is in non-compliance of the provisions of Section 203 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 regarding Appointment of Chief Financial officer.   
 
The company is required to appoint Chief Financial officer in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The Company is liable under provisions of 
Section 203(5) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

2. During the reporting period the we have observed following discrepancies under SEBI (LODR) 
Regulation, 2015 and SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018; 

 
(i) The Company has not made disclosure within prescribed time under Regulation 23(9) of 

SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, and has made delayed submission with stock exchange. 
(ii) The Company has not made timely disclosure within prescribed period under Regulation 

33(3)(d) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, and has made delayed submission with stock 
exchange.  

(iii) The Company has not has not made timely disclosure within prescribed period under 
Regulation 33(3)(a) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, and has made delayed submission 
with stock exchange. 

(iv) The Company has not made Declaration of Impact of Audit Qualifications under 
circular CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016. 

(v) The Company has not submitted Annual secretarial compliance report for the year ended 
2023 in XBRL format under Regulation 24A of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015, 

(vi) The Company has not appointed Chief Financial Officer under Regulation 26A (2) of 
SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 

(vii) The Company has not submitted Copy of Annual Report to the stock exchange within 
specified time for the year ended March, 2023 after date of dispatch of the same to 
shareholders under Regulation 34 (1) (a) of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

(viii) The Company is maintaining a functional website however the information available on 
the website of the listed entity is not up to date and requires update of the compliances and 
information of previous quarters under Regulation 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. 

 
For R	MIGLANI	&	CO. 
Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 
CS	Rajni	Miglani 

Proprietor  
M. No.: 30016 

C .O .P No: 11273 
PR No.: 2392/2022 

       Date:  September 02, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001097808 
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R MIGLANI & CO.  
COMPANY SECRETARIES  

207, D.R. CHAMBERS, D.B GUPTA ROAD, 
                                                                                                                                                                 KAROL BAGH, NEW DELHI 110005  

            MB: 9711560406, Ph. Off: 011‐35004280 
Email: csrajnimiglani@gmail.com, cs.rajnimiglani@gmail.com  

_______________________________________________________________________________  
 

 
Annexure B’ 

 
To,  
The Members,  
MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED  
(Formerly known as P G INDUSTRY LIMITED) 
A - 30, S - 11, SECOND FLOOR, 
KAILASH COLONY NEW DELHI-110048 
 
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.  
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis 
to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices i 
followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 
 

3.  I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of accounts of 
the Company. 
 

4.  Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.  
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards 
is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on 
test basis. 

 
For R	MIGLANI	&	CO. 
Company Secretaries 

 

Sd/- 
CS	Rajni	Miglani 

Proprietor  
M. No.: 30016 

C .O .P No: 11273 
PR No.: 2392/2022 

       Date:  September 02, 2024 
       Place: New Delhi  
       UDIN: A030016F001097808 

 
 
 
 
 

60



 
 
 
 

Annexure – II 
 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
AND 
REMUNERATION 

 
[Pursuant to Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
Explanation:  (i) the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population 

from the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all the 
observations from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle one;  
(ii) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle 
values) 
 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the 
Company for the Financial Year: 

 
Name of the Director Ratio to Median 

Mr. Saket Dalmia – Managing Director 6.73
Mr. Amit Dalmia – Director  6.73
Mr. Pradip Asopa – Director  --
Mr. Anil Kumar – Director  --
Mrs. Usha Sharma – Director  --

 
2. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, and 

Company Secretary in the Financial Year: 
 

Name of the Director, C. F. O and C S Percentage 
increase in 

Remuneration 
Mr. Saket Dalmia – Managing Director --
Mr. Amit Dalmia – Director  --
Mr. Pradip Asopa – Director  --
Mr. Anil Kumar – Director  --
Mrs. Usha Sharma – Director  --
Mr. Davender Kumar – Company Secretary (25.00)

 
3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the Financial Year: 

 
(5.31) 
 

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 
 

Thirty-Four 
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5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last Financial Year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial 
remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 
Average percentile Increase in the salaries of Employees  (8.58) 

 
 
Average percentile Increase in Managerial Remuneration  0.00  
 
 

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company:  
 
It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company. 
 

 
            For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: New Delhi   
Date: 05th September,2024 
       Sd/-                                          Sd/- 

                 Saket Dalmia                                              Amit Dalmia 
(Managing Director)                                         (Director) 

DIN: 00083636                                        DIN:0003646 
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Annexure ‐ III

Name Designation
Remuneration 
received (In 

Lacs)

Nature of 
Employment

Qualification or 
Experience

Date of 
commencement 
of Employment

Age of 
Employee

The Last employment held 
by such employee before 

joining the Company

The Percentage 
of equity 

shares held by 
the employee 

in the 
Company

Whether relative of 
any Director or 
manager of the 

Company and if so, 
Name of such 

Director or Manager

RAJA RAM DALMIA PRESIDENT - SALES & 
MARKETING              18.00 NON 

CONTRACTUAL GRADUATE 25-Sep-14 76 N. A.                     -   SAKET DALMIA, 
AMIT DALMIA

NAMITA DALMIA AGM - SALES (PROJECTS) 15.00            NON 
CONTRACTUAL POST GRADUATE 1-Apr-09 51 N. A.                     -   SAKET DALMIA

SUMEDHA DALMIA AGM - SALES (RETAILS) 15.00            NON 
CONTRACTUAL POST GRADUATE 1-Apr-09 45 N. A.                     -   AMIT DALMIA

ASHWANI AJAY SINGH MANAGER - SALES (WEST) 14.40            NON 
CONTRACTUAL POST GRADUATE 12-Dec-16 41

SALES &
OPERATIONAL HEAD -
C. BHOGILAL WEST
ENT

                    -   N. A.

SANDIP KUMAR PAL SR.MANAGER - 
MARKETING 12.04            NON 

CONTRACTUAL POST GRADUATE 1-Sep-20 41

NATIONAL SALES
HEAD - DUBOND
PRODUCTS PRIVATE
LIMITED

                    -   N. A.

PANKAJ BABBAR SHOWROOM MANAGER - 
SALES 8.74              NON 

CONTRACTUAL GRADUATE 18-Jul-16 50

SALES MANAGER
(CORPORATE) - SOFT
LABS INDIA, NEW
DELHI

                    -   N. A. 

ASHOK SHARMA DATA ANALYST - 
MANAGER 10.32            NON 

CONTRACTUAL POST GRADUATE 15-Jul-17 36
OPERATIONAL HEAD -
M & W FASHION
PRIVATE LIMITED

                    -   N. A.

AMAN AGARWAL ACCOUNTS HEAD 8.20              NON 
CONTRACTUAL C. A. 30-Mar-15 47

MANAGER -
ACCOUNTS, 
VANASTHALI TEXTILE
INDUSTRIES LIMITED

                    -   N. A.

DAVENDER KUMAR
COMPANY SECRETARY 
CUM COMPLIANCE 
OFFICER

7.65              NON 
CONTRACTUAL

COMPANY 
SECRETARY 4-Sep-12 36 N. A.                     -   N. A.

RAMESH CHAND DHOUSELA MANAGER - MARKETING 6.62              NON 
CONTRACTUAL GRADUATE 22-Sep-19 44

REGIONAL SALES
MANAGER (NORTH
INDIA) - KRISHNA
GLOBAL MARBLES &
STONES LLP

                    -   N. A.

The detail of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn as per the provisions of Rule 5(2) and (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 
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Annexure - IV 
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION  
AND  
ANALYSIS REPORT 
 
Management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations include forward-
looking statements based on certain assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company cannot 
assure that these assumptions and expectations are accurate. Although the Management has considered 
future risks as part of the discussions, future uncertainties are not limited to Management perceptions. 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
The Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under 
historical cost convention on the accrual basis as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 
(‘to the extend notified’) and the guidelines issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). 
The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.  
 
Accordingly, Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024 have been prepared in accordance 
with Ind AS prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India. The management of the Company accepts responsibility for the integrity and 
objectivity of these financial statements 
 
SALES 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2024, your company has achieved gross sales of Rs. 5387.33 Lacs in the 
current financial year as against Rs. 13,241.98 Lacs during the previous financial year.  
 
FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
This MD&A includes information that is forward-looking in nature. Such statements concern the future 
earnings of the Company, its operations, its financial results and its financial situation. Such forward-
looking statements can be identified through use of expressions such as “believe”, “foresee”, “anticipate”, 
“estimate”, “expect” and other similar types of terms. Such statements are based on the information 
available at the time that they were made and on the good faith of management according to information 
available at this time.  The statements include an element of uncertainty and the actual results may be 
significantly different from the assumptions and estimations described in the forward-looking statements.  
 
The actual results will be affected by numerous factors over which the Company has no influence. 
Consequently, we recommend against placing undue trust in such forward-looking statements since future 
events and actual results may differ significantly from our forecasts. 
  
The industry: Opportunities & Threats 
 
The Company’s main business is cutting, finishing and trading of Imported Marbles, but it can be done only 
after the raw material has been purchased / imported.  
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Marble City India is exposed to risk of price fluctuation on raw materials as well as finished products in all 
its products as due to import of raw materials it has the risk of delaying or loss in the shipment which may 
cause rise in the price of the raw materials and finished goods too. Due to increase in the Import tariff or 
import duties it also affects the flexibility of the prices of the raw materials.  
     
Segment-wise or product-wise performance: 
  
The Company has only one segment i.e. Marble Blocks/ Slabs  
 
Business Outlook and Overview: 
 
The main business of the Company is to Manufacture and Trading of Imported Marbles and Slabs. The 
Company’s strategy is to strengthen its business with the objective of long-term growth. Its growth depends 
on the development of the Real Estate Sector. Now a day’s Real Estate Sector is developing day by day and 
the demand for the Imported Marbles also increasing day by day.  
 
The Company’s Import is based on the Government policies as laid by them.  
 
Risks and Concerns: 
 
The major risk is frequent increase in price of few raw materials which can increase cost of product and 
can make few products unprofitable unless the increase is passed on to the user which may at times be 
difficult due to stiff competition. In addition, significant competition in key products could also affect 
market share and profitability of the Company.  
 
Internal Control Systems and their adequacy: 
 
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal controls to ensure that all the assets are 
safeguarded, protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are 
authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The company conducts audit of various departments based on 
an annual audit plan through Senior Executive of the Company along with the head of finance department. 
The views of the statutory auditors are also considered to ascertain the adequacy of the internal control 
system. 
 
Material development in Human Resources: 
 
There has not been any major development on the human resources front. The industrial relation continues 
to be cordial during the year 2023-2024. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as 
on 31st March, 2024 was 34. 
  
Significant key financial ratios: 
 
Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 
financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof- 
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Particulars 2023-24 2022-23 Change in %age

Debtors Turnover 3.89 7.73 (49.66)
Inventory Turnover 1.59 0.58 175.28
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.83 1.36 (39.35)
Current Ratio 2.34 2.29 2.27
Debt Equity Ratio 1.91 1.31 45.43
Operating Profit Margin (%)* (3.33) 1.76 (5.09)
Net Profit Margin (%) (4.25) 0.68 (4.93)

 
* Operating Margin is defined as profit Before Taxes and Depreciation 
 
(A) DEBTORS TURNOVER RATIO: - 
 

The debtors turnover ratio is an accounting measure used to quantify a company’s effectiveness in 
collecting its accounts receivable, or the money owed by customers. This ratio measures the 
efficiency of the company in collecting its revenue. 

 
Higher Debtors Turnover Ratio indicates that the company’s collection of Trade Receivables is 
efficient and that the company has a high proportionate of quality customers that pay their debts 
quickly. 

 
(B) INVENTORY TURNOVER RATIO: - 
 

Inventory turnover ratio is the rate at which a company replaces inventory in a given period due to 
sales. Calculating inventory turnover helps businesses make better pricing, manufacturing, 
marketing, and purchasing decisions. Well-managed inventory levels show that a company’s sales 
are at the desired level, and costs are controlled. The inventory turnover ratio is a measure of how 
well a company generates sales from its inventory. 
 
The higher the inventory turnover, the better, since high inventory turnover typically means a 
company is selling goods quickly, and there is considerable demand for their products. 

 
(C) INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO: - 
 

The interest coverage ratio measures how many times a company can cover its current interest 
payment with its available earnings. In other words, it measures the margin of safety a company 
has for paying interest on its debt during a given period. 
 
Higher the Ratio the more poised is the company to its interest on debts during a period 

 
(D) CURRENT RATIO: - 
 

The current ratio measures a company’s ability to pay current, or short-term, liabilities (debts and 
payables) with its current, or short-term, assets, such as cash, inventory, and receivables. 
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The higher the current ratio, the more capable a company is of paying its obligations because it has 
a larger proportion of short-term asset value relative to the value of its short-term liabilities. 

 
(E) DEBT EQUITY RATIO: - 
 

The debt-to-equity ratio shows the proportion of equity and debt a company is using to finance its 
assets and signals the extent to which shareholder’s equity can fulfill obligations to creditors, in the 
event of a business decline. 
 
A low debt-to-equity ratio indicates a lower amount of financing by debt via lenders, versus funding 
through equity via shareholders. A higher ratio indicates that the company is getting more of its 
financing by borrowing money, which subjects the company to potential risk if debt levels are too 
high. 

 
(F) OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN (%): - 
 

An operating margin represents how efficiently a company is able to generate profit through its 
core operations. Operating Profits Margin is a good indicator of how well it is being managed and 
how efficient it is at generating profits from sales. It shows the proportion of revenues that are 
available to cover non-operating costs. 
 
Higher ratios are generally better, illustrating the company is efficient in its operations and is good 
at turning sales into profits. 

 
(G) NET PROFIT MARGIN (%): - 
 

Net profit margin measures how much net income is generated as a percentage of revenues 
received. Net profit margin is one of the most important indicators of a company’s overall financial 
health. Net profit margin is one of the most important indicators of a company’s financial health. 
By tracking increases and decreases in its net profit margin, a company can assess whether current 
practices are working and forecast profits based on revenues. 
 
A high net profit margin means that a company is able to effectively control its costs and/or 
provide goods or services at a price significantly higher than its costs. 
 
 

 
            For and on behalf of the Board 

Place: New Delhi   
Date: 05th September,2024 
       Sd/-                                         Sd/-  

                 Saket Dalmia                                              Amit Dalmia 
(Managing Director)                                         (Director) 

DIN: 00083636                                        DIN:0003646 
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Annexure – V 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (H) OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 134 OF THE ACT 
AND RULE 8(2) OF THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014  

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company 
with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including certain arms -length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis. 
 

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 
March 31, 2024 which were not at arm’s length basis. 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.  
 

The Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis for 
the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows: 
 

 

Name of related 
party & Nature 
of Relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 

arrangements
/ transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements
/ transactions 

Salient terms of the 
contracts or 

arrangements or 
transactions including 

the value, if any 

Date of 
approval 

by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 

advance/ 
repayment 

Mr. Saket 
Dalmia, KMP Services -- Remuneration & Rent -- -- 
Mr. Amit 
Dalmia, Director Services -- Remuneration & Rent -- -- 
Mr. Raja Ram 
Dalmia, Relative Services -- Salary -- -- 
Mrs. Namita 
Dalmia, Relative Services -- Salary -- -- 
Mrs. Sumedha 
Dalmia, Relative Services -- Salary -- -- 
Mrs. Manju Devi 
Dalmia, Relative Services -- Rent -- -- 

 
 
 

            For and on behalf of the Board 
Place: New Delhi   
Date: 05th September,2024 
       Sd/-     Sd/-             

Saket Dalmia                                              Amit Dalmia 
(Managing Director)                                         (Director) 

DIN: 00083636                                        DIN:0003646 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of  
Marble City India Limited 
 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements: 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Marble City India Limited 
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss, Statement of Cash Flows, the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (Hereinafter referred 
as “Standalone Financial Statements”).  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st 
March 2024, and loss (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
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Key Audit matters Auditor’s Response
Company has Equity (paid up capital and 
reserves)  of Rs. 2760.04 Lacs and Borrowings 
including short term borrowing of Rs. 9242.69 
Lacs  as on 31st March, 2024 

Borrowing are 3.34 times of Equity (paid u
capital and reserves) 

 
Management`s Responsibility on the Financial Statements 
  
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in 
Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit / loss, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 
financial reporting process. 

 
Auditor`s Responsibility 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
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resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.   

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report 
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirement 
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the 
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 
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2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of 

our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; 
b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 

Company so far as appears from our examination of those books; 
c) the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 

this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and Cash Flow 

Statement comply with the Accounting Standards; 
e) on the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section (2) of section 
164 of the Companies Act, 2013; 

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report 
in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and 
operating effectiveness of the Company internal financial controls over financial 
reporting; 

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been 
paid/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act; 

h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance 
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:  

 
i. the Company has no pending litigations which have the impact on its financial 

position in its financial statements except stated herein below;   

Nature of 
Dues 

Amount 
of Dues 
(In Lacs)

Period to 
which dues 

relate 

Forum 
where the 
dispute is 
pending

Belongs to 

Income 
Tax 

(Income 
Tax Act, 

1961) 
 

233.05 AY 2017-18 CIT-A In the name of Priceless 
Overseas Limited now 
merged into P G Industry 
Limited (now Marble City 
India Limited) 

165.99 AY 2012-13 CIT-A P G Industry Limited (Now 
Marble City India Limited) 162.81 AY 2013-14 CIT-A
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ii. the Company is not required to make any provision, as required under the applicable 

law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 
 

iii. No amount is required to be transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
by the Company. 

 
iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 

other than as disclosed in the Note No.41(xv) to the Balance Sheet, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
b. The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the Note No.41(xv) to the Balance Sheet, no funds have 
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 
c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any 
material mis-statement. 
 

v. No dividend was declared or paid during the year by the company.  
 
 
 

 For Vishal G Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

 
 

Sd/- 
(CA Vishal Goel) 

(Proprietor) 
(M. No. 094685)) 

Place: New Delhi 
Date:  11 July 2024 
UDIN – 24094685BKEZVV9993  
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 Annexure to Auditors’ Report for the year ended on 31st March, 2024 
 
The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of the Our Report of even date to the members of 
Marble City India Limited (Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited) on the accounts of 
the company for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
1) a) A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including 

quantitative details and situations of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
 

B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, of intangible 
assets. 
 

b)   We are informed that management has carried out the physical verification of the Property, 
Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals, which is considered reasonable having regard 
to the size of the Company and the nature of its business and no material discrepancies 
have been noticed on such physical verification to the extent verification was made during 
the year.  

 
c)  The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.  
 
d)  There has been no revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.  

 
e)  Based on the information and explanation given to us no proceedings had been initiated 

against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, 1988. 

 
2) a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the 

Management at reasonable intervals, however considering the nature of the item involved 
as explained to us the process is acceptable as per the industry norms. However, there is no 
discrepancies of 10% or more which were noticed on physical verification. 

 
b)   The Company was renewed Working Capital Limit by Bank of Baroda during the Year 

and Quarterly Stock Statements are in agreement with the books of Account of the 
Company.  

 
3) a)  The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of Loans, secured or unsecured 

to other Companies.  
 

A. The Company do not have subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. 
 

B. The Company has granted loan of Rs.94.25 Lacs and Balance outstanding of Rs. 
94.25 Lacs as at the Balance Sheet date. 

 
b)   The Terms and Conditions of Loans granted are not prejudicial to the Company`s Interest. 
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c)   In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, Receipts are regular. 
 
d)  No amount is overdue for more than 90 days.  
 
e)  No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted has fallen due during the year. 
 
f)  The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable 

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. 
 

4) In respect of loan, investment, guarantees and security, provision of Sections 185 and 186 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable on the Company. 
 

5) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any 
deposits during the year from the public under the provisions of the sections 73 to 76 of the 
Act and the rules framed there. 

 
6) As per information & explanation given by the management, maintenance of cost records has 

been prescribed by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act 
and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained in tally software only. 

 
7) (a) According to the information and explanation given to us, in our opinion, the company is 

generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Custom Duty and Goods & Service Tax as 
applicable with the appropriate authorities.  

 
(b) There are no disputed dues of Goods & Service Tax, provident fund Employees’ State 
Insurance, Custom duty which has not been deposited. The particulars of dues of Income Tax 
which has not yet been deposited on account of dispute are as follows: 
 

Nature of 
Dues 

Amount 
of Dues 
(In Lacs) 

Period to 
which dues 

relate 

Forum 
where the 
dispute is 
pending

Belongs to 

Income 
Tax 

(Income 
Tax Act, 

1961) 
 

233.05 AY 2017-18 CIT-A In the name of Priceless Overseas 
Limited now merged into P G 
Industry Limited (now Marble City 
India Limited)

165.99 AY 2012-13 CIT-A P G Industry Limited (Now Marble 
City India Limited) 162.81 AY 2013-14 CIT-A

 
 

8) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
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9) a) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and 
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to any 
lender. 
 

b) The company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial 
institution or other lender during the year. 

 
c)  The Company has applied the term loan taken during the year for the purposes for which it 

has been obtained. 
 
d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on 

short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes 
by the Company. 

 
e)  The Company do not have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore, this clause 

is not applicable to the Company. 
 

 
10) a)  As per information and explanation given to us, the company has not obtained any money 

raised by way of Initial Public Issue or Further Public Issue (including debt instruments) 
during the year. 
 

b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

11) a)  No fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the 
year. 

 
 b)  No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 

the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government 

 
c)  No whistle-blower complaint was received during the year by the company. 

 
12) The provisions of any Special Statute applicable to Nidhi Company are not applicable to the 

company. 
 

13) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements. 

 
14) a) Internal Auditor was not appointed during the year. 
 

b)  Report of Internal Auditor were not available during the year. 
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15) The company has not entered into any non – cash transaction with directors or person 
connected with him.  

 
16) The company is not required to be registered under section 45 – IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 
 

17) Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, the company has incurred cash losses in the financial year covered by our audit 
but not in the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
18) During the year there is a resignation of the statutory auditors. 

 
19) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial 

ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the 
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the 
date of audit report that the company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as 
and when they fall due;  

 
20) The Company is not required to spent any amount in Corporate Social Responsibilities under 

the act. Hence relevant clause is not Applicable 
 

21) The Company do not have subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Therefore, this clause is 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
 For Vishal G Goel & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
 

Sd/- 
(CA Vishal Goel) 

(Proprietor) 
(M. No. 094685)) 

Place: New Delhi 
Date:  11 July 2024 
UDIN – 24094685BKEZVV9993  
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(Referred to paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
section of our report to the members of Marble City India Limited of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Marble City India 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone 
Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding 
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
and procedures that  
 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly 

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;  
 

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and  
 

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect 
on the financial statements. 

 
Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to 
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India . 

For Vishal G Goel & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

 
Sd/- 

(CA Vishal Goel) 
(Proprietor) 

(M. No. 094685)) 
Place: New Delhi 
Date:  11 July 2024 
UDIN – 24094685BKEZVV9993  
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024 

Audited Audited
Particulars Notes 31/Mar/2024 31/Mar/2023

ASSETS 
(1) Non-current assets 
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 1,537.62                    1,329.51                  
(b) Capital work-in-progress (See Note 41.iv) 3 -                            -                           
(c) Intangible assets under development 4 -                            -                           
(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 0.19                           0.19                         
(ii) Loans and advances 10 74.78                         69.55                       

1,612.59                    1,399.25                  
(2) Current assets 
(a) Inventories 7 7,290.70                    6,569.34                  
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 5 64.43                         -                           
(ii) Trade Receivables 8 1,178.88                    1,472.01                  
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 9 563.15                       365.76                     
(iv) Loans and advances 10 2,080.74                    1,318.94                  

11,177.90                  9,726.04                  
TOTAL ASSETS 12,790.49                  11,125.29                

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital     11 597.37                       597.37                     
(b) Other equity 12 2,162.68                    2,357.75                  

2,760.05                    2,955.11                  
Liabilities

(1) Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 5,275.57                    3,884.05                  
(b) Provisions 16 -                            -                           
(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 6 (24.27)                       33.34                       

5,251.30                    3,917.39                  
(2)  Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 3,797.12                    2,364.69                  
(ii) Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro and small Enterprises 15 -                            -                           
(B) Total outstanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and small Enterprises 15 351.63                       1,230.61                  

(b) Other current liabilities 16 630.38                       627.64                     
(c) Short-term provisions 17 -                            29.85                       

4,779.14                    4,252.79                  
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 12,790.49                  11,125.29                

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date As approved
For Vishal G Goel & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants    

Sd/- Sd/-

Saket Dalmia Amit Dalmia
Sd/- (Managing Director) (Director)
CA Vishal Goel DIN: 00083636 DIN: 00083646
(Proprietor)

Membership No.-094685 Sd/-
Firm Regn. No.- 0020330N Davender Kumar
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 11th July, 2024 ACS-30043

UDIN: 24094685BKEZVV9993
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31st March, 2024

Audited Audited

Particulars Notes 31/Mar/2024 31/Mar/2023

Income
Revenue from operations (gross) 18 5,387.33           13,241.98         
Less: Goods and Service Tax 798.16              1,859.02           
Revenue from operations (net) 4,589.17           11,382.96         
Other income 19 506.47              23.13                
Total Revenue (I) 5,095.64           11,406.09         

Expenses
Cost of Goods Sold 20 3,292.12           9,510.11           
Employee benefit expenses 21 330.78              386.17              
Finance costs 22 879.32              553.47              
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3&4 94.07                83.93                
Other expenses 23 746.11              755.72              
Total (II) 5,342.39           11,289.42         

Profit/ (loss) before exceptional items and tax (246.75)             116.66              
Profit/ (loss) before tax (246.75)             116.66              

Tax Expenses
Current Year  tax -                    29.85                
Deferred tax charge / (credit) (57.61)               1.66                  
Income tax adjustment for earlier years 5.93                  8.08                  
Total Tax Expense (51.68)               39.59                

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (195.07)             77.07                

Earnings per share 24
Basic and diluted [Nominal value of shares Rs 5/- (Previous 
year Rs 5/-)]

(1.63)                 0.65                  

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date As approved
For Vishal G Goel & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants    

Sd/- Sd/-
Saket Dalmia Amit Dalmia

Sd/- (Managing Director) (Director)
CA Vishal Goel DIN: 00083636 DIN: 00083646
(Proprietor)

Membership No.-094685 Sd/-
Firm Regn. No.- 0020330N Davender Kumar
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 11th July, 2024 ACS-30043
UDIN: 24094685BKEZVV9993
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Audited Audited
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Net Profit before Tax (246.75)                    116.66                      
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 94.07                       83.93                        
(Profit) on sale  of current investments (17.61)                      
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of Fixed Assets (0.37)                        1.60                          
(Profit) from Speculation Business (0.22)                        
Interest income (28.73)                      (19.04)                       
Interest expense 879.32                     553.47                      
Operating profit before working capital changes 679.72                     736.62                      

Movement in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Investments
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receivables 293.13                     504.35                      
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (721.36)                    (1,020.37)                  
(Increase)/Decrease in Current Loans and Advances (767.02)                    (186.86)                     
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payables (878.97)                    (120.27)                     
(Decrease)/Increase in Other Current Liabilities 2.74                         (192.18)                     
Cash generated from operations (1,391.77)                 (278.71)                     
Direct taxes paid (35.78)                      (37.37)                       
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) (1,427.55)                 (316.08)                     

B. Cash flow from investing activities
 Purchase of fixed assets, CWIP and capital advance (303.16)                    (189.77)                     
 Purchase of Investment (64.43)                      -                            
 Sales of fixed assets and CWIP  1.35                         0.55                          
Profit on sale  of current investments 17.61                       -                            
Profit from Speculation Business 0.22                         -                            
Interest received 28.73                       19.04                        
Net cash (used in) investing activities  (B) (319.69)                    (170.18)                     

C. Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds / (Repayment) of long term borrowings 1,391.53                  1,106.15                   
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) short term borrowings 1,432.43                  (49.92)                       
Interest paid (879.32)                    (553.47)                     

 Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities (C) 1,944.64                  502.76                      

 Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 197.39                     16.50                        

Cash & cash equivalents at the begining of the year 365.76                     349.26                      
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year 563.15                     365.76                      

Components of cash & cash equivalents as at 31 March
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Audited Audited
Particulars 31-Mar-2024 31-Mar-2023
 Cash on hand 8.08                         7.24                          
 Balances with Scheduled banks: 
 On Current accounts -                           -                            
 On Fixed deposit accounts  555.07                     358.52                      
 Balances with non-scheduled banks - on current account 

563.15                     365.76                      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date As approved
For Vishal G Goel & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants    

Sd/- Sd/-
Saket Dalmia Amit Dalmia

Sd/- (Managing Director) (Director)
CA Vishal Goel DIN: 00083636 DIN: 00083646
(Proprietor)

Membership No.-094685 Sd/-
Firm Regn. No.- 0020330N Davender Kumar
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 11th July, 2024 ACS-30043
UDIN: 24094685BKEZVV9993
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MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED
(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Statement of changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In Lacs)
A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(1) Current reporting Period

Share Capital as 
on 01.04.2023

Changes in equity share capital due 
to prior period erros

Restated Share Capital as on 
01.04.2023

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the 
Current year

Share Capital as 
on 31.03.2024

597.37                -                                                  597.37                                      -                                                                597.37              

(2) Previous reporting Period

Share Capital as 
on 01.04.2022

Changes in equity share capital due 
to prior period erros

Restated Share Capital as on 
01.04.2022

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the 
Current year

Share Capital as 
on 31.03.2023

597.37                -                                                  597.37                                      -                                                                597.37              
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MARBLE CITY INDIA LIMITED
(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)
Statement of changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March, 2024

(Rs. In Lacs)
B. OTHER EQUITY

(1) Current reporting Period

General reserve Capital reserve Securities 
Premium Retained earnings

Equity 
Instruments 

through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Revaluation 
Surplus Total

As at April 1, 2023 12 -                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,369.25               -                        -                      2,357.75              
Changes in accounting policy
or prior period errors -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      

Restated balance as at April 1,
2023

-                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,369.25               -                        -                      2,357.75              

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Current Year -                           -                    -                      -                    (195.07)                 -                        -                      (195.07)               

Dividends -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      
Transfer to retained earnings -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      
As at March 31, 2024 -                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,174.18               -                        -                      2,162.68              

(2) Previous reporting Period

General reserve Capital reserve Securities 
Premium Retained earnings

As at April 1, 2022 12 -                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,292.18               -                        -                      2,280.68              
Changes in accounting policy
or prior period errors -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      

Restated balance as at April 1,
2022

-                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,292.18               -                        -                      2,280.68              

Total Comprehensive Income
for the Current Year -                           -                    -                      -                    77.07                    -                        -                      77.07                  

Dividends -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      
Transfer to retained earnings -                           -                    -                      -                    -                        -                        -                      -                      
As at March 31, 2023 -                           28.62                 674.72                 285.16              1,369.25               -                        -                      2,357.75              

Total

Reserves and surplus
Equity 

Instruments 
through Other 
Comprehensive 

Income

Revaluation 
SurplusParticulars Notes

Share application 
money pending 

allotment

Particulars Notes
Share application 

money pending 
allotment

Reserves and surplus
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Marble City India Limited (Formerly known as P G Industry Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

1 Corporate Information

2

a

Use of Estimates:

Statement of Compliance:

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Marble City India Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company') was incorporated on December 13, 1993. The
Company is a Public Limited company having five Directors namely Mr. Saket Dalmia, Mr. Amit Dalmia, Mr.
Pradip Asopa, Mr. Anil Kumar and Mrs. Usha Sharma and its shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited (BSE Limited) & The Calcutta Stock Exchange. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing, processing,
trading and selling of Marble Blocks/Slabs.

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013 and Indian Accounting

Standards (Ind AS) and Disclosures thereon comply with requirements of Ind AS, stipulations contained in Schedule-

III (revised) as applicable under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with, Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from time to time, MSMED Act, 2006, other pronouncement of ICAI, provisions

of the Companies Act and Rules and guidelines issued by SEBI as applicable.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or no-current as per the company’s normal operating cycle.
Based on the nature of business and the time between the acquisition of assets and their realization in cash and cash
equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as12 months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

The company is a Small and Medium sized company (SMC) as defined in the General Instructions in respect of
Accounting Standards notified under the Companies Act. Accordingly, the company has complied with the
Accounting Standards as applicable to a Small and Medium Sized Company.

No use of estimates

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act”), as applicable . The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of
the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
11th July 2024.
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Marble City India Limited (Formerly known as P G Industry Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

b

c Depreciation

d

e

f

  

Finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of work in progress and manufactured
finished goods comprises of direct material, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing these inventories
to their present location and condition. Net realizable value is estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated cost of completion necessary to make sale. The comparison of cost and net realizable value
is made on an item by item basis. 

Impairment of Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

 Valuation of Inventories

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value, an impairement loss is
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which asset is identidied as impaired. The impairement loss
recognised in prior accounting period is reversed if there has been change in the estimate of recoverable amount. No
impairment Profit or Loss has been identified during the year.

The amortization of an intangible asset has been made as per stright line method with a finite useful life reflects the

manner in which the economic benefit is expected to be generated.

Lease hold land is not depreciable.

i) Property Plant & Equipment are stated at original cost of acquisition and includes insurance, freight, Finance
Charge and installation expenses.

ii) The costs of leasehold land shown in the balance sheet represent the consideration paid to RIICO at the time of
transfer in favour of the Company.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a written down value basis
from the date the assets are available for use. The estimated useful life of assets are reviewed and where appropriate

are adjusted, annually.

 Investments

Investments are stated at cost.

iii) Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.

Property Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets

Raw materials are carried at cost. However, raw materials are considered to be realizable at replacement cost if the
finished goods, in which they will be sold, are expected to be sold below cost. Cost includes purchase price
(excluding those subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the concerned revenue authorities and GST),
freight inwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition.
In determining the cost, standard cost method is used which approximates to the actual cost.
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Marble City India Limited (Formerly known as P G Industry Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

g Cash and Cash Equivalents

h Foreign currency transactions

i Revenue recognition

j Operating Leases:

k Finance Leases:

l Segment Reporting Policies

m

Transactions in the foreign exchange are recorded at prevailing rate on/or near to the date of transaction. All
exchange gains and losses are accounted for in the Profit and Loss Account under respective heads. Balances
outstanding as on 31st March, 2024 are recorded at foreign currency rate as on that date

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer,
usually on delivery of the goods. 

Leases under which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. The lower of fair value of asset and present value of minimum lease rentals is capitalized as fixed
assets with corresponding amount shown as lease liability. The principal component in the lease rentals is adjusted
against the lease liability and interest component is charged to profit & loss account. There is no financial lease
transaction during the current financial year.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 
presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund are defined contribution schemes and the contributions are
charged to the Profit and Loss Account of the year when the contribution to the fund is due. There are no other
obligations other than the contribution payable to that fund.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, bank balances in saving/current accounts and deposits. 

Lease arrangements where the risk and rewards incident to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor
are recognized as operating lease. Lease rent under operating leases are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are accounted for on accrual basis. As per
management, the other long term employee benefits will be accounted for on payment basis.

88



Marble City India Limited (Formerly known as P G Industry Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

n Borrowing cost

o Taxes on Income

p

q Earning Per share

 

r

The company creates a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of past event that probably ensures an
outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

For the purpose of calculating Diluted Earning Per Share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of
current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting income for the year and reversal of timing
differences of earlier years. 

Basic Earning Per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Contingenices and events occuring after Balance Sheet Date

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company and/or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made,
is termed as contingent liability.

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of any Qualifying Asset are capitalized as part

of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for

intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue. Interest on borrowings is recognized on a tie

proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable on the borrowings.

Provision, Contingent liabilities and Contingent Assets

Accounting for contingencies (gains or losses) arising out of contractual obligations are made on the basis of mutual
acceptance. Events occurring after the date of Balance Sheet are considered up to the date of finalization of
accounts, wherever material.
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(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars Land Buildings Factory Buildings Plant & 
Machinery

Furniture & 
Fixtures

Office Equipment Vehicles Computer 
Equipment

Total Capital Work 
in Progress    
(See Note 
41.iv)

Gross Carrying Value as of April 1, 
2023

                        440.14                         306.44                          111.80                  662.80                         40.02                      53.78                       644.32                         7.90                2,267.21 

Additions                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                             8.69                      16.87                       276.71                         0.89                   303.16 
Deletions                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                          (41.20)                            ‐                     (41.20)
Gross Carrying Value as of March 31, 
2024                         440.14                         306.44                          111.80                  662.80                         48.71                      70.65                       879.83                         8.80                2,529.17                      ‐   

Accumulated Depreciation as of April 
1, 2023                                  ‐                               2.22                            68.68                  441.43                         22.89                      26.66                       370.19                         5.63                   937.70  ‐                   

Depreciations                                  ‐                               4.60                              2.65                    26.39                           5.08                      10.74                          42.96                         1.65                     94.07  ‐                
Accumulated Depreciation on 
Deletion                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                          (40.22)                            ‐                     (40.22) ‐                   

Adj. With Retained Earning                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                             ‐    ‐                   

Accumulated Depreciation as of 
March 31, 2024                                  ‐                               6.81                            71.33                  467.82                         27.96                      37.40                       372.93                         7.29                   991.54  ‐                   

Carrying Value as of March 31, 2024                         440.14                         299.62                            40.47                  194.98                         20.75                      33.25                       506.90                         1.51                1,537.62                      ‐   

Carrying Value as of April 1, 2023                         440.14                         304.22                            43.12                  221.37                         17.13                      27.13                       274.13                         2.27                1,329.51  ‐                

Marble City India Limited
Note‐3 Property Plant & Equipment
The Changes in Carrying Value of property, plant & equipment for the year ended March 31, 2024

Explanation 1 to Section 23(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Finance Act, 2022 provides for any capital Expenditure incurred in the building which has been taken on lease to be included in Building. Therefore, Capital work in
progress incurred in leased building situated in Mayapuri, Delhi has been transferred to Building.
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(Amount in ` Lacs)Marble City India Limited
Note 3 Property Plant & Equipment

Particulars Land Buildings Factory Buildings
Plant & 

Machinery
Furniture & 
Fixtures

Office Equipment Vehicles
Computer 
Equipment

Total
Capital Work 
in Progress    
(See Note 

Gross Carrying Value as of April 1, 
2022                         440.14                                 ‐                            111.80                  662.80                         29.58                      46.89                       503.08                         7.04                1,801.33  297.65             

Additions                                  ‐                           306.44                                  ‐                            ‐                           10.44                        6.90                       162.79                         0.87                   487.43  8.78              
Deletions                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                         (21.54)                            ‐                    (21.54) (306.44)         
Gross Carrying Value as of March 31, 
2023

                        440.14                         306.44                          111.80                  662.80                         40.02                      53.78                       644.32                         7.90                2,267.21  ‐                   

Accumulated Depreciation as of April 
1, 2022

                                 ‐                                   ‐                              66.03                  415.04                         20.02                      16.78                       351.62                         3.97                   873.47  ‐                   

Depreciations                                  ‐                               2.22                              2.65                    26.39                           2.87                        9.88                          37.96                         1.66                     83.62  ‐                   
Accumulated Depreciation on 
Deletion                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                          (19.39)                            ‐                     (19.39) ‐                   

Adj. With Retained Earning                                  ‐                                   ‐                                    ‐                            ‐                                 ‐                               ‐                                  ‐                               ‐                             ‐    ‐                   

Accumulated Depreciation as of 
March 31, 2023

                                 ‐                               2.22                            68.68                  441.43                         22.89                      26.66                       370.19                         5.63                   937.70  ‐                   

Carrying Value as of March 31, 2023
                        440.14                         304.22                            43.12                  221.37                         17.13                      27.13                       274.13                         2.27                1,329.51  ‐                   

Carrying Value as of April 1, 2022                         440.14                                 ‐                              45.77                  247.76                           9.56                      30.11                       151.46                         3.06                   927.86  297.65             

Explanation 1 to Section 23(1) of Income Tax Act, 1961 read with Finance Act, 2022 provides for any capital Expenditure incurred in the building which has been taken on lease to be included in Building. Therefore, Capital work in
progress incurred in leased building situated in Mayapuri, Delhi has been transferred to Building.

The Changes in Carrying Value of property, plant & equipment for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Marble City India Limited
(Amount in ` Lacs)

Particulars
Content 

Development

Intangible Asset 

under Development
Total

Gross Carrying Value as of April 1, 

2023

                             3.00                               3.00 

Additions                                  ‐                                      ‐  

Deletions                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Gross Carrying Value as of March 31, 

2024

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Accumulated Depreciation as of 

April 1, 2023

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Depreciations                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Accumulated Depreciation as of 

March 31, 2024

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Carrying Value as of March 31, 2024                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Carrying Value as of April 1, 2023                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Particulars
Content 

Development

Intangible Asset 

under Development
Total

Gross Carrying Value as of April 1, 

2022

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Additions                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Deletions                                 ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Gross Carrying Value as of March 31, 

2023

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Accumulated Depreciation as of 

April 1, 2022

                                ‐                                 2.69                               2.69 

Depreciations                                 ‐                                 0.31                               0.31 

Accumulated Depreciation on 

Deletion

                                ‐                                     ‐                                      ‐  

Accumulated Depreciation as of 

March 31, 2023

                                ‐                                 3.00                               3.00 

Carrying Value as of March 31, 2023                                 ‐                              (0.00)                            (0.00)

Carrying Value as of April 1, 2022                                 ‐                                 0.31                               0.31 

Note 4 Intangible Assets

The Changes in Carrying Value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 4 Intangible Assets

The Changes in Carrying Value of Intangible Assets for the year ended March 31, 2023
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)

Audited Audited

5. Investments

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Trade investments (valued at cost 
unless stated otherwise)
Unquoted equity instruments 
Investment in equity instruments                       0.19                         0.19 
Quoted equity instruments 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment -                                               64.43 -                          

0.19                     0.19                        64.43                     -                          

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investment -                                               64.43 -                          

Market Value of Quoted Investment -                         61.14                     -                          

Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investment 0.19                        -                          

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investment -                         -                          

6. Deferred tax Assets (net)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Deferred tax assets
                      63.08                              -   

Gross deferred tax assets (A) 63.08                      -                          

Deferred tax liabilities
                      38.82                        33.34 

Gross deferred tax liabilities (B) 38.82                      33.34                       

24.27                      (33.34)                     

7. Inventories(valued at lower of cost & net realisable value)

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Raw materials                          -                               -                       377.04                      436.64 
Stores and spare                          -                               -                         15.19                          6.55 
Finished goods                          -                               -                    6,898.47                   6,126.14 

-                       -                         7,290.70                6,569.34                 

8. Trade receivables

31-Mar-24

Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Unsecured - Considered goods

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables                       320.29                     102.27                    93.48                     200.52                     428.00 1,144.56                 

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Significant Credit Risk

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit impaired

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables                                -                               -                            -                               -                         34.32 34.32                       

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Significant Credit Risk

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
impaired

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

320.29                      102.27                   93.48                   200.52                   462.32                   1,178.88                 

Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in the current year/ earlier years but 
allowable for tax purposes on income basis

Non-current Current

Current

Outstanding from the due date of payment

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2024

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/ amortization charged for 
the financial reporting

Payment of statutory dues allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 but not charged to the statement of 

The Company has not made any investment in Subsidiaries/ Associates/ Joint Ventures, etc.

Net deferred tax assets (Liability) (A-B)

Non-current
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited)

Audited AuditedNotes to financial statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2024

31-Mar-23

Particulars Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Unsecured - Considered goods

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables                       495.07                     223.55                  256.91                       80.95                     379.43 1,435.91                 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Significant Credit Risk

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - 
Credit impaired

                               -                               -                            -                               -                               -   
-                          

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables                                -                               -                            -                               -                         36.09 36.09                       

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - 
Significant Credit Risk -                          

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit 
impaired

-                          

495.07                      223.55                   256.91                 80.95                      415.52                   1,472.01                 

9. Cash and bank balances

Particulars 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

On current accounts -                       -                         -                         -                          

Cash in hand -                       -                         8.08                       7.24                         

(A) -                       -                         8.08                       7.24                         

Other bank balances:

-                       -                         8.12                       7.64                         

-                       -                         546.95                   350.88                     

(B) -                       -                         555.07                   358.52                     

 Total ( A + B ) -                       -                         563.15                   365.76                     

10. Loans and advances

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Security Deposits

Secured, considered good                          -                               -                               -                                -   

Unsecured, considered good                    74.78 69.55                      12.22                     12.22                       

 (A) 74.78                   69.55                      12.22                     12.22                       

Secured, considered good                          -                               -                               -                                -   
Unsecured, considered good                          -                               -   848.97                   766.42                     

 (B) -                       -                         848.97                   766.42                     

Others loans and advances
Unsecured, considered good

GST Input Tax Credit                          -                               -   73.33                     46.69                       
                         -                               -   0.34                       0.21                         

Prepaid expenses                          -                               -   8.67                       12.40                       
Advance to Suppliers                          -                               -   310.23                   368.50                     
Deposit with Revenue                          -                               -   826.99                    112.50                     

 (C) -                       -                         1,219.55                540.30                     

Total (A+B+C) 74.78                   69.55                      2,080.74                1,318.94                 

Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 
months*

*FDR's and RD amounting to Rs. 414.78 Lacs (Previous year Rs. 322.60 Lacs) earmarked by the Bank of Baroda, Defence Colony against Cash credit facility / Working
Capital Loan

Outstanding from the due date of payment

CurrentNon-current

Non-current Current

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 
received, considered good unless stated otherwise

Intt on Security Electricity Behror Receivable
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11. Share capital

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Authorised shares

1,525.00                1,525.00                 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up 
shares

597.37                   597.37                     

Total subscribed and fully paid-up 
share capital

597.37                   597.37                     

Equity shares

 No. of shares   (Rs. )  No. of shares   (Rs. ) 

At the beginning of the year 1,19,47,308.00   597.37                   1,19,47,308.00      597.37                     

Modification -                       -                         -                         -                          

Outstanding at the end of the year 1,19,47,308.00   597.37                   1,19,47,308.00      597.37                     

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

(c) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Particulars  No. of shares 
 % holding in the 

class 
 No. of shares 

 % holding in the 
class 

Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid

VPS Constructions (P) Ltd.        14,46,266.00                       12.11          14,46,266.00                        12.11 

PSH Constructions (P) Ltd.        14,85,291.00                       12.43          14,85,291.00                        12.43 

Reven Distributors Pvt. Ltd.*        23,48,078.00                       19.65          23,48,078.00                        19.65 

Vishiv Trading Pvt. Ltd.        10,99,699.00                         9.20          11,25,144.00                          9.42 

S V K Trading Pvt. Ltd.        10,70,309.00                         8.96          10,92,261.00                          9.14 

Manju Devi Dalmia          6,44,675.00                         5.40            6,44,675.00                          5.40 

(d) Shareholding of Promoters

Particulars  No. of shares 
 % holding in the 

class 
 No. of shares 

 % holding in the 
class 

 % change during 
the year 

Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid

Saket Dalmia             4,32,220.00 3.62%             4,32,220.00 3.62% 0.00%
Amit Dalmia             4,32,220.00 3.62%             4,32,220.00 3.62% 0.00%
Manju Devi Dalmia             6,44,675.00 5.40%             6,44,675.00 5.40% 0.00%
Puja Dalmia                         3.00 0.00%                         3.00 0.00% 0.00%
Raja Ram Dalmia                     277.00 0.00%                             -   0.00% 0.00%
Reven Distributors Private Limited*           23,48,078.00 19.65%           23,48,078.00 19.65% 0.00%

38,57,473.00         32.29% 38,57,196.00         32.29% 0.00%

31-Mar-2331-Mar-24

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

* Formerly Known as Newlook Vinimay Private Limited

31-Mar-23

 3,05,00,000 (Previous year 3,05,00,000 of Rs. 5/- each) equity 
shares of Rs. 5/- each 

31-Mar-24

 1,19,47,308 (Previous year 1,19,47,308 of Rs. 5/- each) equity 
shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up 

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above

shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

(a) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
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12. Other Equity

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Retained Earnings

Balance as per the last financial statement                  1,369.25 1,292.18                 

Profit (Loss) for the year (195.07)                  77.07                       

Net surplus (profit and loss a/c) 1,174.18                1,369.25                 

 Total (A) 1,174.18                1,369.25                 

Capital Reserve

 Opening Balance 674.72                   674.72                     

Securities Premium

 Opening Balance 285.16                   285.16                     

General Reserve

 Opening Balance 28.62                      28.62                       

 Total (B) 988.50                   988.50                     

Total reserves and surplus (A+B) 2,162.68                2,357.75                 

13. Long-term borrowings Non-current portion Non-current portion

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Term Loans

Secured Loans

-From Bank of HDFC Bank                     260.10                        32.58 

-From Bank of Baroda                       91.07                      101.99 

-From Bank of Baroda                     291.32                      423.22 

Unsecured Loans

-From Directors & Relatives                             -                                -   

-From Others                  4,803.08                   3,475.22 

5,445.57                4,033.01                 

The above amount includes

Secured borrowings                     642.49                      557.79 

Unsecured borrowings                  4,803.08                   3,475.22 

Amount disclosed under the head "other 

current liabilities" (refer note 16)

                  (170.00)                     (148.96)

Net amount 5,275.57                3,884.05                 

14. Short-term borrowings

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Cash credit facilities from  banks 
(secured)

                 3,797.12                   2,364.69 

                 3,797.12                   2,364.69 

The above amount includes:

Secured borrowings                  3,797.12                   2,364.69 

                 3,797.12                   2,364.69 

(Secured against Hypothecation of Vehicle financed)

Cash credit & Buyers Credit facility / Working Capital Loan from Bank of Baroda, Defence Colony amounting to Rs. 3797.12 lacs (Previous year Rs. 2364.69 lacs)

together with interest and other charges are secured by way of hypothecation of all Company's Stock in trade and Book Debts, both present and future. This facility is

further secured by way of hypothecation of immovable fixed assets of the company and personal guarantee of the directors.
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15. Trade payables
31-Mar-24

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unsecured - Considered goods
(i) Dues of MSMEs                             -                            -                               -                               -   -                          
(ii) Dues of other than MSMEs                     324.18                    27.45                             -                               -   351.63                     
(iii) Disputed dues- MSMEs                             -                            -                               -                               -   -                          
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSMEs                             -                            -                               -                               -   -                          

324.18                   27.45                   -                         -                         351.63                     

31-Mar-23
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Unsecured - Considered goods                             -                            -                               -                               -   
(i) Dues of MSMEs -                          
(ii) Dues of other than MSMEs                  1,123.61                       8.46                       82.62                       15.91 1,230.61                 
(iii) Disputed dues- MSMEs                             -                            -                               -                               -   -                          
(iv) Disputed dues - Other than MSMEs                             -                            -                               -                               -   -                          

1,123.61                8.46                     82.62                      15.91                     1,230.61                 

16. Other current liabilities

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Other liabilities

Current maturities of long term 
borrowings (refer note 13)

           170.00             148.96 

Others:

Payable towards capital goods                    -                       -   

Advances from customers            178.75             157.11 

Other payables            248.56             240.49 

TDS/TCS Payable              27.96               61.96 

GST Payable                4.44               18.09 

EPF Payable                0.50                 0.86 

ESI Payable                0.18                 0.16 

630.38                   627.64                     

17. Provisions

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

 Other provisions 

 Income tax provision                          -                               -                               -                          29.85 

-                       -                         -                         29.85                       

-                       -                         -                         29.85                       

Outstanding from the due date of payment

Outstanding from the due date of payment

Short termLong term
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18. Revenue from operations

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Revenue from operations

Sale of products - Domestic 5,387.33               13,240.52            

Sale of products - Export                            -                         1.47 

Revenue from operations (gross) 5,387.33               13,241.98            

Less: Goods and Service Tax                    798.16                1,859.02 

Revenue from operations (net) 4,589.17               11,382.96            

19. Other income

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Interest on Bank / Security deposits                      28.73                     19.04 
Commission income                    457.31                           -   
Other Incomes                        2.24                       4.08 
Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets                        0.37                           -   
Speculation Income from Securities                        0.22                           -   
Short Term Capital Gain                      17.61                           -   

506.47                  23.13                    

20. Cost of Materials  Consumed

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Inventory at the beginning of the year                 6,562.79                5,540.32 

Add : Purchases & Direct Expenses 4,004.84               10,532.59            

Less : Inventory at the end of the year                 7,275.51                6,562.79 

3,292.12               9,510.11              

21. Employee benefit expense
Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Salary & Wages                    287.27                   344.28 
Directors' Remuneration                      36.00                     36.00 
Contribution to Provident and other funds                        3.63                       3.62 
Staff Welfare                        3.87                       2.28 

330.78                  386.17                  

22. Finance costs

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Interest expense 879.32                  553.47                  

879.32                  553.47                  

23. Other Expenses

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Consumption of stores and spares                      73.98                     68.81 

Power and fuel                      26.32                     22.43 

Other Manufacturing expenses                      10.28                       8.44 

Repairs and maintenance:

   -Plant and machinery                        6.06                       4.04 

Notes to financial statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2024
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   -Godown                        7.49                       2.77 

Rent                    314.78                   308.01 
Rates, Fees and taxes                        8.35                     24.13 

Insurance                      16.32                     16.08 

Travelling and conveyance                      20.54                     51.76 

Communication costs                        7.65                       8.23 

Printing and stationary                        0.33                       0.58 

Legal and professional fees                      22.40                     36.56 

Electricity and diesel expenses                      44.72                     45.35 

Payments to auditor                        0.80                       0.80 

Freight and forwarding charges                      43.05                     37.41 

Vehicle running and maintenance                      15.33                     10.51 

Discount allowed                        0.57                       0.12 

Advertisement and sales promotion                      57.05                     50.22 

Bank charges                      41.92                     22.34 

Fine & Penalty                        3.33                       5.86 

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets                            -                         1.60 
Commission Paid                        8.51                     10.15 
Loss of Stock                            -                         0.78 
Miscellaneous expenses                        7.94                       7.73 
Directors Sitting Fees                        8.37                     11.02 

746.11                  755.72                  

24. Earning per equity share

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Net profit as per profit and loss statement (195.07)                 77.07                    
No. of equity shares at the beginning and closing of the period / year 119.47                  119.47                  
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating 
basic and diluted EPS

119.47                  119.47                  

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (1.63)                     0.65                      

25.  Auditor's Remuneration:-

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Audit fees                        0.50                       0.50 

Tax audit fees                            -                             -   

Limited review                        0.30                       0.30 

Total                        0.80                       0.80 

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Domestic Market                 4,589.17              11,382.96 

Overseas Markets                            -                             -   

Total                 4,589.17              11,382.96 

 
27.  Contingent liabilities (not provided for) in respect of

26.  Segment Information

The following is the distribution of the Company’s consolidated sales (net of Goods and Service Tax) by geographical market, regardless of 
where the goods were produced.

Primary Segments
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Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
(a) Income Tax Demands against which appeal is sub 
judice till the date of Balance Sheet                    561.85                   693.73 

(b) Bank Guarantee                            -                             -   

Total                    561.85                   693.73 

27.1   Value of Imports calculated on CIF Basis (on accrual basis)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Raw Material / Finished Goods                    746.11                   646.22 

                   746.11                   646.22 

27.2   Earnings in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Exports at F.O.B value                            -                             -   

                           -                             -   

27.3   Expenditure in Foreign Currency (on accrual basis)

Particulars 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Import of Material                    712.86                   537.47 

Travelling                      11.84                     15.01 

                   724.70                   552.49 

28. Quantity Details

Class of Goods

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

QTY (SQFT) QTY (SQFT) QTY (M.T.) QTY (M.T.)

Opening Stock            22,59,539.32          21,05,699.32                  1,265.86                   909.28 

Value (Rs. In Lacs)                    6,126.14                 5,246.72                     436.64                   293.60 

Purchase/ Processed            14,79,949.00          34,31,949.00                  3,203.99              16,935.52 

Sales/ Processed            13,83,384.00          32,78,109.00                  3,230.92              16,578.94 

Closing Stock            23,56,104.32          22,59,539.32                  1,238.93                1,265.86 

Value (Rs. In Lacs)                    6,898.47                 6,126.14                     377.04                   436.64 

29.  Imported and indigenous raw materials, components, stores and spares consumed
(In ) (In )

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Raw Material / Finished Goods

Imported 34.58% 10.88%                  1,138.42                1,034.48 
Indigenously obtained 65.42% 89.12%                  2,153.71                8,475.63 

100.00% 100.00%                  3,292.12                9,510.11 

Stores and spares 

Imported 0.00% 0.00%                             -                             -   

Marble Slabs/Tiles Marble Blocks

% of total consumption
Particulars

Particulars

The company doesn’t expect the outcome of these proceedings to have any kind of materially adverse effect on its financial results.
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Indigenously obtained 100.00% 100.00%                       73.98                     68.81 

100.00% 100.00%                       73.98                     68.81 

30.   Related party disclosures

Key Management Personnel

Mr. Saket Dalmia (Managing Director )

Mr. Amit Dalmia (Director)

Mr. Raja Ram Dalmia (Relative)

Mrs. Manju Devi Dalmia (Relative)

Mrs. Sumedha Dalmia (Relative)

Mrs. Namita Dalmia (Relative)

Related party transactions

Particulars

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

(In ) (In )

Transactions for the year:

 Directors Remuneration paid                       36.00                     36.00 

 Salary Paid (Relative)                      48.00                     48.00 

 Rent Paid (Director and Relative)                      37.80                     37.80 

31. Employee Benefits

As per Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits”, the disclosure of Employee benefits are given below :-

Defined Contribution  Plan (In )

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
                        2.79                       2.78 
                        0.84                       0.83 

32. Fair Value Measurement

Contribution to PF
Particulars

1. The carrying amounts of trade payables, other financial liabilities (current), other financial assets (current), borrowings (current), trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances have not been revalued due to their Short term nature and calculated on
Closing Value.

2. Borrowings (non-current) consists of loans from banks and other parties consists of interest accrued but not due.

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. 

Level 2 : The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques, which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If significant inputs required to fair value
an instruments are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 

Contribution to ESI

The following table provides the total amount of transactions those have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Key Management Personnel

Note: Transactions and balances relating to reimbursement of expenses to / from related parties have not been considered above.

Fair value of instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels : 

The short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages and bonus etc., are accounted for on accrual basis. As per management, the other
long term employee benefits will be accounted for on payment basis.
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33. Corporate Social Responsibility

34. Note on COVID: 

39. Internal Financial Controls and Internal Audit

40. Micro and Small Enterprises

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

                            -                             -   

37. In the opinion of the management, all the Current Assets, Loan and Advances have a value at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet,
if realized in the ordinary course of the business and the provision for all known liabilities are adequate and are not in excess of the amount
payable.

The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic globally and in India is causing significant disturbance and slowdown of economic
activity. Businesses are being forced to cease or limit their operations for long or indefinite period of time. Measures taken to contain the
spread of the virus, including travel bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services have triggered significant
disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. Our company’s performance from the month of March was effected
as the Quarter end activities relating to sales and revenue could not be completed. Further, there was effect also in the ensuing months as the
entire field force was unable to perform in field and generate the secondary demand to the desired levels. However, company took immediate
steps to counter the impact and has been able to salvage the situation. Third party verifications of Inventories and debtors could not be carried
out at the end of year and are based on management certification.

36. These accounts have been prepared after consideration of Sanctioned Scheme of amalgamation of Priceless Overseas Limited with Marble
City India Limited (Formerly Known as P G Industry Limited) and order of Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Delhi, dated 24th
February 2020. 

35. Income Tax assessment has been completed up to assessment year 2022-23. Sales Tax assessment has been completed up to financial
year 2017-18.

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on observable market data, the instruments is included in Level 3.

The Provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable to the Company in terms of Section 135(1) of the Compaies Act, 2013

38. The amount of Sundry Debtors, Creditors and Advances from/to Parties  outstanding as on 31st March  2024 have been shown in the 
Balance Sheet at Net Realizable Value.  

Particulars

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has no dues to suppliers registered under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED Act'). The
disclosure pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows:

4. Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the 

MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
5. Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, 
beyond the appointed day during the year
6. Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already 
made
7. Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years

1. Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 
year end
2. Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end

3. Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day 
during the year
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41. Additional Regulatory Information in terms of Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013

31-Mar-24
Loan or Advance 
in the nature of 

loan outstanding 
(In )

% to the total 
Loans & 

Advances in the 
nature of loans

                            -                             -   
                            -                             -   
                            -                             -   
                            -                             -   

(iv) Capital Work in Progress (In )

Capital work in Progress Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Projects in Progress                               -                              -                               -                             -   

                            -                             -   
Projects suspended                               -                              -                               -                             -   

                            -                             -   

(v) Intangible assets under development (In )

Intangible assets under development Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years
More than 3 

Years
Projects in Progress                               -                              -                               -                             -   

                            -                             -   
Projects suspended                               -                              -                               -                             -   

                            -                             -   

(xiii) Ratios:

(ix) The company has not made any transaction with any company whose name is struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013
or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956.

(xii) The company has not entered into any scheme of arrangements during the year.

CWIP for a period of 

Intangible assets under development for a period of 

(vi) No proceedings have been inititiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami Property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the rules made thereunder.

(vii) Quarterly returns or statements of Current assets filed by the Company with Bank of Baroda, Defence Colony, New Delhi are in
agreement with the Books of Accounts.

(viii) The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or Financial institution or other lender.

(ii) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets.

Type of Borrower

3. KMPs

(i) Title deeds of Immovable Properties have been held in the name of the Company.

4. Related Parties

(x) No charge or satisfaction is pending to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(xi) There is no subsidiary of the Company. Therefore, provisions of Section 2(87) read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017 are not applicable.

(iii) Loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to Promoters, directors, KMPs and other related parties:

The Company has not received any memorandum/declaration (as required to be filed by the suppliers with the notified authority under the 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006) claiming their status as on 31st March 2024 as micro, small or medium 

enterprises. Consequently, the amount paid/payable to these parties during the year is Nil.

1. Promoters
2. Directors
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31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23 % change
2.34                      2.29                       2.27%
1.91                      1.31                       45.43%
0.83                      1.36                       -39.35%

-7.07% 2.61% -9.68%
1.59                      0.58                       175.28%
3.89                      7.73                       -49.66%

11.39                    8.56                       33.07%
0.72                      2.08                       -65.52%

-4.25% 0.68% -4.93%
9.07% 10.97% -1.90%

(xv) Utilization of Borrowed funds and Share premium:

Inventory Turnover Ratio (Inventory/ Revenue)

(xiv) The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (Revenue/ Trade receivables)
Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (Purchases/ Trade Payables)
Net Capital Turnover Ratio (Revenue/ Working Capital)
Net Profit Ratio (Net Profit/ Revenue)
Return on Capital employed (EBIT/ Capital employed)

This Ratio has been decreased due to decrease in turnover and increase in working capital of the Company during the Current Financial Year.

The Company has taken additional debt from sources othan than FIs to make investment in Working Capital. Management is expecting that it
will increase the revenue in the long run and it will be beneficial for the Company.

Particulars
Current Ratio (Current Assets/ Current Liabilities)
Debt-Equity Ratio (Long term debt/ Shareholder's Equity)
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Earnings for Debt Service/ Debt Service)
Return on Equity Ratio (Net Profit after taxes/ Shareholder's Equity)

Debt-Equity Ratio (Long term debt/ Shareholder's Equity)

Explanation of Ratios wherein change of more than 25% as compared to Previous year:

42. Previous year figures have been re-arranged/re-grouped wherever necessary.

b)       provided any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

a)     directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities, identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

Inventory Turnover Ratio (Inventory/ Revenue)

This Ratio has been decreased due to decrease in turnover of the Company during the Current Financial Year.

This Ratio has been increased due to decrease in trade payables level of the Company during Current the Financial Year.

Net Capital Turnover Ratio (Revenue/ Working Capital)

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Earnings for Debt Service/ Debt Service)

The ratios for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows :

The Company has taken additional debt from sources othan than FIs to make investment in Working Capital. Management is expecting that it 
will increase the revenue in the long run and it will be beneficial for the Company.

Turnover of the Company  decreased during the FY 2023-24 due to Red Sea shipping crisis, characterized by the unfortunate attacks on cargo 
ships by pirates/terrorists, resulted in a significant blockade in the importation of new Marble Blocks/ Tiles.

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio (Revenue/ Trade receivables)

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio (Purchases/ Trade Payables)

ii)  The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the 

i) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall 

a)       directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities, identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b)      provided any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 
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Marble City India Limited (Rs. In Lacs)

(Formerly known as P G Industry Limited)

Audited AuditedNotes to financial statements for the Period ended 31st March, 2024

45. Borrowings from Banks and Financial
Institutions:

46. Undisclosed Income:

47. Managerial Remuneration:

As per our report of even date As approved

For Vishal G Goel & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants    

Sd/- Sd/-

Saket Dalmia Amit Dalmia

Sd/- (Managing Director) (Director)

CA Vishal Goel DIN: 00083636 DIN:00083646

(Proprietor)
Membership No.-094685 Sd/-
Firm Regn. No.- 0020330N Davender Kumar
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary
Date: 11th July, 2024 ACS-30043
UDIN: 24094685BKEZVV9993

43. The Company is required to designate Managing Director, CFO and CS as Key Managerial Personnal of the Company. Mr. Saket Dalmia,
Managing Director and Mr. Davender Kumar, Company Secretary are Key Managerial Personnal of the Company. The Company is trying, at
its best, to appoint C.F.O. 

48. Notes No’s 1 to 47 form an integral part of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss Account.

The Company does not have any transactions not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961). Also, there are nil previously unrecorded income and related assets.

The company has paid/provided for the managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.

44. In the opinion of directors, current assets and loans and advances have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the business at least
equal to the amount at which these have been stated in the Balance Sheet.

Company has used the Borrowings from Banks or financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the Balance Sheet 
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